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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO THE MEMBERS

MOTICE is hereby given that the 33™ Annual General Meeting of the Members of Nicco Gorporation Limited will be
held on Tuesday, the 27" September, 2016, at 11.00 AM at the Auditorium onm 10™ Floor of Indian Chamber of
Commerce, [CC Towers, 4 India Exchange Place, Kolkata 700 001, to transact the following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1. Toconsider and adopt :
{a) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Gompany for the financial year ended on 31% March,
2018, together with the Auditors’ Report and Directors” Report thereon.
{b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 317 March,
2018, together with the Awditors” Report thereon.

2. Toappoint a Director in place of Mr Udayan Ray, who retires by rotation and being efigible, ofiers himseif for re-
appointrent.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr Shiv Siddhant Marayan Kaul, who retires by rotation and being eligible, ofiers
hirmnzelf for re-appoint rment

4. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOUUITRCM:-

“"RESCHLVED that pursuant o the provisions of Section 138 & 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Aules, 2014, as amended from time to time and pursuant to the recommendation of the Awdit
Committee of Directors of the Company, the Gompany hereby ratifies the appointment of Mfs G Basu & Co.,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Mo. 301174E) as the Auditors of the Company to hold Office from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the thirty fourth AGM of the Company. to be
held on year 2017, at a remuneration to be decided by the Board of Directors of the Gompany.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS
5. Appointment of Dr Dilip Kumar Datta as an Independent Director
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION:-

"Aesolved that, pursuant io the provisions of section 148, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2012 and the Rules made there under read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutony
madification{s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in foree) and SEBI (Listing Cbligations and Disclosune
Requirements) Aegulations, 2013, DOr Diip Kumar Datta, (OIM: 00408151) in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from a Member proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Direcior, be and is
hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company and Dr Datta shall hold office for 3{five) consecutive
years not liable 1o retire by rotation, however with an option to retire, for a term upto the conclusion of the 38™ Annual
General Meeting, in the calendar year 2021.7

6. Modification of Ordinary Resolution passed in AGM held on 20 September, 2015 regarding Remuneration
to the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year 2016-17

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, the following resclution as an CROIMARY RESCLUTION:-

"REZOLVED that in modification and substitution of the Ordinary Resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting
heid on 28™ September, 2015 in respect of the remuneration payable to M's. 5. Aoy Chodhury & Company, Gost
Accountants (Firm Registration Mo. 000148) for the Financial year ended on 31 March, 2016, consent of the
Company be and iz hereby accorded to the ratification of the remuneration of Rz, 20,000~ payable o Mr O N
Enndupndh}?}r Cost Accountant (Firn Registration No 102073) (Membership Mo. M4143) for the Financial year
ended on 31" March, 20168 as appointed and recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company pursuant o the provisions of section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification or re-
enactrment thereof for the time being in foree)”™

"RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and

things, and take all such steps as may be considered necessary. proper or expedient to give efiect to the
aforesaid Resolution.”
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7. Remuneration to the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year 2016-17
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, the following resclution as an CADINARY RESCLUTESM: -

"REZOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Gompanies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration of Rs 20,000V- payablke to Mr O M Bandopadhyay., Gost
Accountant (Firn Registration Mo 102075) (Membership Mo. M4143} as recommended by the Audit Commitiee and
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company for conducting Audit of the Cost Accounting Aecords of the
Company for the Financial Year ending on 31% March, 2017 or such other extended Financial Year as may be decided
by the Board in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder be and is hereby
ratified.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hersby awthorised to do all acts, deseds, matiers and things. and
take all such steps as may be considered necessary, proper or expedient to give efiect to the aforesaid Resolution.”

Registered Cifice - By Order of the Board
Nicco House MNICCGO CORPORATION LIMITED
2 Hare Strest RAHUL BANERJEE
Folkata 700 D01 COMPANY SECRETARY

Dated, the 11™ August, 2016

MOTES :

1. A Member entitled to atternd and vole at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to atternd and vole instead of
himself and the Proxy meed not be a member of the Compamny. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members
not exceeding 30 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate not more than fen percent of the total Share Gapital of the
Company camying voling rights. & Member holding more than t&n percent of the total Share Capital of the
Company camying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall mot act as proxy for
amy other Member.

2. Proxies in order to be effectve must be rece ived by the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Monday, the 18™
Septernber, 2016 to Tuesday the 27" September, 2016 (both days inclusive).

4. Members are requesied io produce the enclosed A ttendance Slip, duly signed as per the specimen signature
recorded with the Company [ Depository Participant for admission o the Meeting Hall.

3. Members are requesied to bring their copies of the Annual Report and the Accounts fo the Meeting. Members
desinous of getting any information on the Accounts or operations of the Gompany, are requested to forward their
queries to the Gompany at least seven working days prior to the Meeting, 5o that the required information can be
made available at the Meeting.

6. Members, who hold shares in the dematerialised form are requested to bring their Client |0 and DP 1D Numbers
for easier identification of atliendance at the Mesting.

7. Members holding shares im physical form are requested to notify immediately any change in their address
incduding Pin Code and Bank particulars to the Gompany or itz Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and in case
thieir shares are held in dematerialized form, this information should be passed on directly to their respective
Depaository Participantsand not to the Company £ Begistrar & S5TA, without any delay.

8. In all comespondence with the Company, Members are requested to quote their account / folio numbers and in

case their shares are held in the dematerialised form, they are requested to quote their OF 10 and Client |0
Mumbers.

8. Members holding shares in physical forrn can now avail the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by
them pursuant to Section 72 the Gompanies Act, 2013. Members desiring to avail this facility may send their
Momination Form duly filled in, to the Gompany or its Aegistar & Share Transier Agent by guoting their
respective Folio Mumbers.

10,  Inforrmation pursuant to section 124(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, (section 2054 of the erstwhile Cormpanies
Act, 1858) read with the Companies Unpaid Dividend (Transfer o General Revenwe Account of the Central
Govermment) Rules, 1878 as amended is given below :

(i} Pursuant to section 124(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, (section 205A of the erstwhile Companies Act,
1836}, all unclaimed / unpaid dividends upto the Financial Year ended on 315t Manch, 1884, have been
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11.

transfemed to the General Revenuwe Account of the Central Govemment. Shareholders, who have not yet
encashed their dividend warmants for the said period are requesied to fonsard their claims in Form Moo 1l
prescribed under the Companies Unpaid Dividend {Transfer 1o General Revenue Account of the Gentral
Government) Rules, 1878, to the Cfice of the Registrar of Gompanies, West Bengal, 2344, A J G Bose
Road, Kolkata 700 020.

(i) Pursuant to section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of dividend for the subseqguent years
remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a penod of seven years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend
Account of the Gompany shall be transfermed to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) set up
by the Gowemment of India. In compliance with the said provisions of the Act, all Unclaimed Dividends
pertaining to the Financial Year ended on and from 31 March, 1985 to 31" December, 1988, have already
been transfermed to |EPF and no payments shall be made in respect of any swch claims by the Fund.

Members who are holding Shares in identical order of name in more than one folio are requested to send 1o the
Company o its ATA the details of such folios together with the Share Certificates for consolidating their holding
i oree fiolio.

The Share Certificates will be returmed to the Members after making requisite change therson.

12. The Securties and Exchange Boar d of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Accoumt

13

Mumber (PAM) by every paricipant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their
demat Accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their FAN details o the Company /
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents.

The Ministry of Corporaie Affairs has taken a "Green Initiatve in Corporate Govemnance’ by allowing paperess
compliances by the GCompanies and has issued circulars stating that serviee of Notice/Documents including
Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its members. Therefore, members who hase not regisiered their e-mail
addresses, so far, are requested to register their e-mail address in respect of electronic holdings with the
Depository thmugh their concemed Depository Participants. Members who hold Shares in physical form are
requested o register their e-mail ids with the Registrar and Share Transier Agents.

14. In terms of Gircular Mo. CIR / CFD/J DIL / 7/ 2011 dated 5™ October, 2011 and in line with the Green Initiative of

13

16

Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide their Circular dated 20™ April, 2011, the abridged Balance Sheet of the
Company for the year ended on 31 March, 2016, will be circulated to the Members of the Gompany.
Shareholders will be entitied to be fumished, free of cost, with a copy of the Balance Sheet of the Cormpany and
all other documents required by law to be attached themreto including the Statement of Profit & Loss and Auditors'
Repaort, upon receipt of the requisition from the Shareholders, any time, as a Member of the Company. These
docurments will also be available on the GCompanys Website wenw niccogroup com for download by the
Shareholders.

The physical copies of the Annual Report will also be available at the Company's Regisiered Odffice in Kolkata for
inspection during 3.00 PM 1o 4.00 PM on any working day upio 23™ September, 2016.

The Motice of the 33™ AGM and instruction for e-voting along with the Atendance Slip and Prooy Form, is being
sent by electronic mode to all the Members whose e-mail address regisiered with the Gompany/Depositony
Participant(s) for communication purpose unless any member has requesied for a hard copy of the same. For
Members who have not registered their email addresses, physical copies of the Annual Report 2018, are being
sent by permitted mode.

Woting throwgh Electronic means - In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) FhJIEE 2014, the Gompany is pleased 1o
provide the members facility 1o exercise their right 1o vote at the 33™ Annual General Meeting by electronic
mieans and the business may be transacied through e-voting services provided by Mational Securities Depositony
Limited (NSOL).

The instruction / procedure for e-voting are as under :

A.  For Members receiving information electronically: -

L  Incompliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Cormpanies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and
Administration] Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20135, the Company is pleased to provide its members the
facility to essercize their nght to wote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-
Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system
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fromn a place other than venue of the AGM ("remote e-wvoling”) will be provided by Mational
Securities Depository Limited (MSDOL).

O The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members
attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercize their
right at the mesting through ballot paper.

M. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-woting prior o the AGM may also attend the
AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

IV. The remote e-voting period commences on 24™ Sepember, 2016 (900 am) and ends on 26"
September, 2016 (5.00 pr). During this period members of the Gompany, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 20™ Sepiember, 2016 may cast
their voile by remote e-voting. The remole e-voting module shall be disabled by NSOL for woting
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to
change it subsequently.

¥V  The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

B. In case a Member receives an email fromn NSDOL [for members whose email 10s are registered with the
Company/Depository Paricipant{s)]:

i) Openemail and open POF file viz: “remote e-voting. pdf™ with your Client |0 or Folio Mo. as password.
The said POF file containsg your user |0 and password/PIM for remote e-vating. Please note that
the passwaord is an initial password.

i) Laumeh Intermet browser by typing the fo llowing URL: hitps:/fwww evoting.nsdl.com
(i) Glick on Shareholder - Login

(") Put user |0 and password as initial passwor d'PIN noted in step (i) above. Click Login.

(v} Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new password of your choice with
mimimum 8 digits‘characters or combination thereof. Mote new password. It is strongly recommended
niot i share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

(vi) Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-wvoting: Active Voting Cycles.
wi) Select "EVEMN" of "NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED".
(wiii) Mow you are ready for remote e-voting as Gast Vote page opens.

() Gast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on "Submit® and also "Confirm”® when
promipied.

(x} Upon confirmation, the message "Vote ca 5t successfully”™ will be displayed.

(=) Cnce you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(mi) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, MR, ete..) are required to send scanned
copy (PODFRAJPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter eic. together with attested
specimen signature of the duty authorzed signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer through e-mail to rdinfotec @ yahoo.com with a copy marked to evoting @ nsdl.co.in

. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Motice of AGM [for members wihose email |Ds are not regisiensd
with the Company or reqguesting physical copy] -

(i) Initial 'user |d' and ‘password’ are provided as belowfat the bottomn of the Atiendance Slip for the AGM :
EVEN |Remote e-woting Event Number) USER IO PASSWORDVPIN

(i} Please follow all steps from S1. Mo. (i} to 51. Mo. (xil) above, to cast voie.

VI. Incase of any queres, you may refer the Frequently Asked Cuestions (FAGs) for Members and remaote e-

woting user manual for Members available at the downloads section of www evoting_nedlcom or call on toll
free no.: 1800-222-690.
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Vil. If you are already registered with NSOL for remoie e-voting then you can use your existing user 1D and
password/PIM for casting your vole.

Vill. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be
used for sending future communication|s).

I¥. The voting rights of memibers shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the
Gompany as on the cut-off date of 20™ September, 2016.

¥.  Any person, who acquires shares of the Gompany and become member of the Company after dispatch of
the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e, 20" September, 2018, may obtain the login 1D and
password by sending a request at evoting @nsdl.co.in or RTA. However, if you are already registered with
NSOL for remote e-voting then you can wse your existing user 10 and password for casting your vote. If
you forgot your password. you can reset your password by using “Forgot User DetailsPassword” option
available on wenw evoting. nsdl.com or contact NSOL at the following toll free no.: 1800-222-200.

Xl. A person, whose name is recorded im the register of members or in the register of bereficial owners
mainiained by the deposiories as on the cut-off date only shall be entited to avail the facility of remole e-
votimg £ voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

X, Mr PV Subramanian, Company Secretary in Wholetirne Practice (GP MO, 2077, ACS NO. 4385) has been
appointed as the Serutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company 10 scrutinize the woting at
thve AGM and rermoie e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

X, The Chairmnan shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held,
allow woting with the assistance of scnutinizer, by use of "Ballot Paper”™ / "Poling Paper™ for all those
members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

XIW. The Scrutinizer shall after the eonclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at
the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remole e-voting in the presence of at least two
witnesses not in the employment of the Gompany and shall make, not laler than three days of the
conGlusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or against, i amy,
to the Ghairman or a person authorzed by him in wrting, who shall countersign the same and declare the
result of the voting forthwith.

XV. The Resullz of the voting alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the
Company waww_niccogroup.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by
thve Chairman or a person authonzed by hirm.

17. An Esplanatory Siaternent as required under section 102{1) of the Gompanies Act, 2013 in relation o the
Sipecial Business of the Meeting is annexed hereto and forms part of this Motice.

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS AEGUIRED UMDER SECTRC 102(1) ©OF THE COMPANIES AGT, 2013
ITEM NC. 5. Appointment of Dr Dilip Kumar Datta as an Independent Director

Dr Dilip Kumar Datta had been appointed as an Independent Director of the Gompany at the 31* AGM of the
Gompany held on 26" Sepember, 2014 for a period of 5 years ie. upto the conclusion of the 36" AGM in the
Calendar year 2018.

However, due to unavoidable circumstances, by virtue of the provisions of Section 167(1}b) of the Companies Act,
2013, Dr Datta had vacated his Office as an Independent Director with effect from 12™ Movember, 2015.

The Board of Direciors of the Company at its Meeting held on 12® February, 2016 has appointed Dr Dilip Kumar Datia
as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 12™ February, 2018
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Dir Dilip Kumar Datta is an M.Tech (Chemical Engineerning), MBA (Finance) and Phd (Business Management) and is
specialized in assessing Techno Economic Viability of wvarous Projects and has undertaken such assignments on
behalf of variows Banks and Financial Institutions in India & abroad.

Considerning his educational background and vast experience the Board felt that the Gompany would be benefitied by
the continuance of Or Dilip Kumar Datta as an Independent Direcior and proposes the appointment of Or Datta as an
Independent Director of the Company upto the conclusion of the 38 AGM in the calendar year 2021.

The Gompany has receved declaration from Or Datta that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both
under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the SEBEI| Regulations.

The resolution seeks the approval of members for the appointrment of Or Datta a5 an Independent Director of the
Company for a period of five years pursuant to section 149 and any other applicable provisions of the Gompanies Act,
2013 and the rules made thereunder. He is not liable to retire by rotation, however with an option to retire.

Im the opinion of the Board of Directors, Or Datta, who is proposed to be appointed as an Independent Direcior, fulfils
the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made thereunder and he is independent of the Management. A copy
of the draft letter for the appointrment of Or Datta as an Independent Director setting out the ferms and conditions is
available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered COffice of the Gompany during nommnal
business hours on working days upto the date of AGKM.

The Board considers that his continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable o
continue to avail the serviees of Or Datta as an Independent Director.

Excepting Dr Dilip Kumar Datta, who is interested in his appointrment, none of the Direciors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company or their relatives isfare in any way concemed or interested in the said appointrent.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in ltem Mo, 3 for the approval of the members.

ITEM NO. 8 - MODIFICATION OF ORDINARY RESOLUTION PASSED IN AGM HELD ON 20™ SEPTEMBER, 2013
REGARDING REMUNERATION TO THE COST AUDMTOR FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2015-16

At the Annual General Meeting held on 26" Sepiember, 2015 the members of the Gomany had ratified the
remumneration of M's. 5. Roy Chodhury & Company, GCost Accountants to carry out Gost Audit pertaining to
Shyamnagar and Baripada Cable Division of the Gompany for the year ended on 31 March, 2018 of Rs. 70,000/
plus applicable service tax and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actual, if any. However subsequently, Mis
S. Roy Choudhury & Go., Gost Accountants have expressed their umwillingness to continue as Gost Auditors of the
Company due to personal reasons.

Based on the recommendation of the Awdit Commitiee of Directors, the Board of Directors of the Gompany at its
Meeting held on 11" Auwgust, 2016 approved the appointment of Mr 0 N Bandopadhyay, Gost Accountant (Firm
Registration Mo. 102075) (Membership Mo. 4143) for the Financial Year ended on 31 March, 2016 of the Company in
place of Mis 5 Roy Chowdhury & Company to carmmy out Gost Audit pertaining o Gable Division (Shyamnagar &
Baripada) at a rermuneration of As. 20,000/-. In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Aule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Audiiors) Rules 2014, the remuneration payable o the Cost Auditor
requires ratification by the Shareholders of the Company

Accordingly, the Board recommends Resolution Mo, § of the Motice convening this Annual General Meeting for
approval by the Members.

Mone of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Gompany or their relatives isfare in any way concemed or
interested in the said resolution.

ITEM NO. 7 - REMUNERATION TO THE COST AUDITOR FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2016-1T

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Gommittee of Directors, the Board of Directors of the Company at their
Meeting held on 11® August, 2016 re-appointed Mr D N Bandopadhyay, Gost Accountant (Firm Registration Mo.
102073) (Membership No. 4143) as the Cost Auditor of the Company to camy out Gost Audit pertaining to Cable
Division {Shyamnagar and Baripada) of the Gompany for the Financial Year ending on 31* March, 2017 at a
remuneration of As 20,000/ In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14
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of the Gompanies (Auwdit and Auditors) Rules 2014, the remuneration payable to the Gost Auditor requires ratification
by the Sharetwolders of the Gompany.

Accordingly, the Board recommends Resolution Mo. 7 of the Motice comwening this Annual General Meeting for
approval by the Members.

MNome of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives isfare in any way concemed or
interested in the said resolution.

Registered Cifice : By Order of the Board
Nicco House NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED
2 Hare Street RAHUL EANERJEE
Holkata 700 001 COMPANY SECRETARY

Dated, the 11™ August, 2016
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NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED
ANNEXURE - A’

Details of Direciors seeking appointment’ re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
{ln pursuance of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013.

Mame of the Director Mr Udayan Ray

Daie of Birth 01/06/1945

Date of appointrment JO0072003

Expertise in specific functional areas Extensive experience in Finance,

Treasury, Taxation, Cperations

E.ru:l H_umun Hesm.l_mes Manugement
Crualifications Post Graduate i Commence,

F.LC W AL

List of other Companies in which Directorships held 1. ME Cables Lid.

2. Miceo Enterprises Lid.
3. Micco Ventures Lid.

Memberships' Stakeholders Redationship CGum Grevance Commitiee —
Chaimmanships of Committees of Directors Member
of the Company
Memberships' Mil
Chairnanships of Committees of Directors
of other Companies
Shareholding of MH_A
Non-Executive Directors
Relationship with other Directors MNone
Mame of the Director Mr Shiv Siddhant Marayan Kaul
Date of birth 24 101877
Date of appointment .10 2007
Expertise in specific functional areas Management, expenence in Finamnce, LI5S
Treasures and in Asset Liability Management. .
Clualifications
MSE. Cperations Research and Financial Engineering
from Prineston University, Princeton, MJ and Bachelor of
Arts, Economics and Compuier Scence from College of
Woaster, Wooster, OH.
List of other Companies in which Micco Emgineering Services Lid.
Directorships held Micco Financial Services Limited
ME Cables Limited
Micco Enterprises Limited
Parasi Consultant Pwt. Lirnited
Shy Compusoft corn Put. Lid.
Memberships / Chairmanships: of Siakeholders Relationship Gum Grevance Commitiee —
Comimittees of Directors of the Company Member
Memberships [ Ghaimanships of Micco Emgineering Services Limited
Committees of Directors of other Corporate Social Responsibility Committee — Membser
Companies
Shareholding of non-executive Directors Mil
Relationship with other Directors Son of Mr Rajive Kaul,

Brother of Ms Pallavi Priyvadarshini Faul
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Mame of the Direcior Dr Dilip Kurmar Datta
Date of Birth 07 081845
Date of appointment 31.01 2011

Expertize in specific
functional areas

Specialized in assessing Techno Economic Viability of
vanous projects and underakes such assignments on behalf
of various Banks and Financial Institutions in India & abroad.

[ Crualification

M. Tech (Chemical Engineering), MBA (Finance} and Ph.D.
{Business Management)

List of other Companies in which Direciorships held

The Ganges Manutacturing Cao. Lid.
Sayantan Consultant Pt Lid.
Riga Sugar Gompamy Lid.

Memberships/
Chairmanships of
Committees of Direciors of the Company.

Mil

Memberships/ The Ganges Manufacturing Go. Lid.
Chaimnanships of a) Management Gommitiee — Member
Directors of other b} Awudit Committee - Member
Companies.

El'mrehnh:ling of non-executive Lirectors Mil
Relationship with other Directors Mone
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DIRECTORS® REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended 31" March 2016
Your Directors submit their Report for the financial year ended 31% March 2016,

STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS

Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(As. in Lakhs) (As. in Lakhs)
GROSS REVENUE 1020 11040
PROFIT BEFORE FINANCE COST AND DEPREGIATION (827) 117
PROFIT AFTER TAX, (=087) (4648)

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS AS ON31% MARCH, 2016

The Plants remained closed under the Temporary Suspension of Work Order due fo acute shortage of working capital.
In parallel DAS package has been worked out and circulated to all Secured Lenders under order of BIFR with a view
1o arrange working capital and eventual turm around of the Company.

BIFR hearing of main case had taken place 24™ September, 2015 and as per the directive of BIFR, Allahabad Bank
{0A) convened a Joint Lenders Meeting (JLM) on 8" October, 20115, whenein all the lenders discussed at length about
the revised DRSS submitted by the Company. It was decided that the Company would circulate the modified DRSS along
with Minutes of JLM held on 8 October, 2015. The Company circulated the revised DRS to all the lenders on
30™ October, 2015 and subsequenty State Bank of India had given some comments on the revised DRS. Based on
SBI's comments, the Gompany had circulated the modified DRS on 30" November, 2015. Allahabad Bank had given
their in-principle approval dated 7 November, 2015. The DRS is now in active consideration of all Secured Lenders.

In the meantime the last Asset Sale Gommittee Meeting took place on 22™ February, 2016, whenein the Reserve
Price has been finalized at As 16 crores for sale of Barpada Division. Subsequently, the Company has filed a
Miscellaneous Application Mo. 4808 dated 26™ May, 2016 and the same has not been lisied as yet for hearing.

DIVIDEND

In view of the loss suffered by the Company and the accumulated losses of the previous years, your Direciors are
unable to recommend any dividend on Preference or Equity Shares.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under Regulation 34{3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligatons and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20135 is enclosed im Annexure A forming part of this Repaort.

FINANCE

As the working capital had virtually dred up, the Company had to resort to temporany suspension of worke It is
therefore necessary to get the revised DAS approved by all the lenders and finally by BIFR for its implementation at
the eariest and your Company's managemenit is eamestly working to try and make this happen.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to Section 128(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Consolidated Financial Staternents have been prepared in

accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards issued by the Instibute of Charered Accountants of India. The
audited Consolidaled Siaternents together with the Auditors” Report thereon from part of the Annual Report.
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Status of Defaults in Financing Obligations as on 31* March 2016

1) Redemption of Preference shames:

337,000 Preference Shares of As. 100V- each aggregating to Rs. 3.37.00,000- issued and allotted by the
Company o WBIDC had fallen due. In additiom, 18.46,000 Preference Shares of As. 100/- each for
RA=.18,46,00,000 issued 1o TOB had also fallen due. In view of the critical fimancial position of the Company and
as per provisions of Section 55 of Companies Act 2013 (relevant to Section 80 of the Gompanies Act 1958) the
Preference Shares were not redeemed and considered for restructure under the DRS.

2} Creerdue Loan (including interest: Term Loan, sales Tax Loan, Gash Gredit etc.,)

Rsflncs
a) POl — : F30.00
b} TODE —Loan : Ta7.00
Rloyalty : 243..00
c] India SME Asset Heconstruction Go. — : a2 .00
d} SREI— ;128900
e} WB Gowt. : 1361.00
fi WBIDC : A71.00
gy ARGIL : 111200
Chnsortium Banks 228404
ij HAEL Lhility Engineers Lid S [ N
30138.40

The employees of the Company are continuing to contribute to Micco Restrueturing Employees Trust Fund
(MRETF). During the year, your Company has issued and allotied 50,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs 2/~ each at par
aggregating to As 1.00 crore to Micco Restructuring Employees Trust Fund (MBETF) in compliance with SEBI
Regulations. Allotrment of 37,00,000 Equity Shares of RS 2/- each at par aggregating to Rs 74.00 lacs to MRETF
iz pending approval of Stock Exchange.

MRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant 1o section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirrm that—

{a} in the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial year ended March 31, 2018, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b} the directors have selecied such accounting policies and applied them consisiently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as fo give a true and fair view of the siate of affairs of the company
at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the company for that peniod;

(z) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other imegularities;

{d} the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concem basis;

(e} the directors, have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such imtemal
fimancial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

{fi the directors have devized proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such sysiems are adequaite and operating effectiwehy.

BOARD AND C-OMMITTEE MEETINGS

Dwring the year under review, four Board Meetings were convened and held.
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The Board has constituted an Audit Committee with Mr Marottam Oas as Chairmnan and Mr Prabir Chakravarti and Mr
Sujit Poddar as Members. There have not been any instances during the year when recommendations of the Audit
Committee were not accepied by the Board.

The composition and other particulars relating 1o the other Board Committees have been detailed in the Corporate
Governance Report which forms a part of this Repaort.

The Board meets regularly fo discuss and decide on vanious matters as required. Due to business exigencies, certain
decisions are taken by the Board through cireulation from tiree to time. Additionally several Committee Meetings as
vell as Independent Directors Meeting were also held. The details of the Meetings are given in the Gorporate
Govermnance Report which forms a part of this report. The intensening gap between the Meetings was within the period
prescribed under the Gompanies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Regulations.

DECLARATION BY INDEFENDENT DIRECTORS

Mecessary declarations from all the Independent Direciors of the Company confirming that they meet the criteria of
REMUNERATION POLICY

In accordance with the provisions of section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2013, the Gompany has a Remuneraton Policy in place. The objectives and
key features of this Policy are —

a) Formmulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes of Directors, Key Managernial Personnel
and Senior Management Personnel and also independence of Independent Direciors;

b) Evaluation of performance of Board members, its Committees and Directors including Independent Direciors;
¢} Recomrmendation to the Board on remuneration payable 1o Directors, KMPs and Senior Management; and

d) Retainimg. motivating and promoting talent and enswring long e sustainability of talented managerial persons
and creating competitive advantage.

The Remunertion Policy is available on the Gompany’s website wena niccogroup.com.
BOARD EVALUATION

In compliance with the Schedule IV of the Gompanies Act, 2013, a meeting of the Independent Direciors of the
Cormpany was held to review and evaluate the perdormance of the Mon-Independent Directors and the CGhairperson of
the Company taking into account the wviews of the executive directors and non-executive Directors; assessing the
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board and also o
review the overall performance of the Board. The meeting of the Independent Direciors of the Gompany was held on
12" February, 2016, wherein the performance of the Non-Independent Directors including the Chairman and of the
Board as whole was evaluated.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on 19™ May, 2018 has evaluated the performance of all
Independent Directors individually and found thermn un-biased, constructive, beneficial and adding value to the cause of
the Comnpany.

The Momination & Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on 107 May, 2016 reviewed
the performance of the Board as a whole and that of the individual Directors.

STATUTORY AUDNTORS

ks G Basu & Go., Charered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 301174E) are eligble 1o hold office as Auditors till
the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting in terms of the provisions of section 138 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rule & of the Gompanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 subject to ratfication of their
appointment by the Members at AGM. Accordingly, ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors s being sowght
from the Members of the Company.

The Company has received the consentconfirmation of Messrs G Basu & Go for their appointment as siatubory
auditors and a certificate from them regarding satisfaction of the criteria provided in section 141 of the Companies Act,
2013 and their eligibility for appointment of Auditors of the Company.

The notes on accounts refermed to in the Awditor's Repaort are seif-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any
further comments.
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COST AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Awdit) Arnendnnent
Aukes, 2014, your Directors, have appointed Mr O N Bandopadhyay., Gost Accountant (Firn Registration Mo 1020735)
(Membership Mo. M4143) to awdit the cost accounts of the Company for the 2 financial years ending Manch 31, 2016
and March 31, 2017, The remuneraton payable to the Cost Auditors is being placed for ratification by the Members.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant 1o Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under, Mr P WV Subramanian (C.P. No.-
2077, ACS — 453835), Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice, was appointed as the Secretaral Awdior of the
Company for the Financial Year 2013-16. The report of the Secretaral Auditor is enclosed as Annexure |. The report
i self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments

INTERNAL FINANCIAL C-ONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQGUACY

The Gompany has an Intemal Gontrol System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations.
The intermal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively 50 as to ensure ordery and efficient conduct
of the business operations. The Statutory Auditors have also certified to that effect in their Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES DR INVESTMENTS

Your Company has not given any loan of has not made any investrments under section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 during the year under review.

DIRECTORS
Appointment & Cessation

Dr Diip Kumar Datta had been appointed as an Independent Director of the Gompany at the 31 AGM of the
Company held on 20™ Septernber, 2014 for a period of 5 years i.e. upto the conclusion of the 36™ AGM in the calendar
year 2019. He had vacated his office as an Independent Director with effect from 12* November, 2015 by virtue of the
provisions of section 167(1)b) of the Companies Act, 2013 due to unavoidable circumstances.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on 12 February, 2016 inted Or Dilip Kurnar Datta as
an Additional Direcior designated as Independent Direcior of the Company w.ef. 127 February, 20186 pursuant to the
provisions of section 161(1) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Article 124 of the Aricles of Association of the Company.
Dir Datta holds Office as Director of the Company upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Gompany has received a Motice in writing along with the requisite deposit from a Member in termns of Section
180{1) of the Companies Act, 2013, signifying his intention to propose the appointrment of Dilip Kumar Datta as a
Director of the CGompany at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Dir Datta is an Independent Director of the Company pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
Regulations.

Dir Dilip Kumar Data being eligible is proposed 1o be appointed as Non-Executive (Independent) Director for a term of
frve consecutive years on the Board of Directors of the Company.

Technology Development Board (TOB) had withdrawn the nomination of Mr Miraj Kela as its Nominee Director with
effect from 16" September, 2015. Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the valuable services rendered
to the Company by Mr Niraj Kela during his tenure as Director of the Company. TDB vide their letter dated 28™
Nowember, 2015 nominated Or Chaitali Bhattacharya as its Mominee Direcior on the Board of the Company. TOB has
withdrawn the nomination of Dr Chaitali Bhattacharya with effect from 27 July, 2016, Your Directors place on record
their appreciation for the valuable services rendered to the Company by Or Chaitali Bhattachanma during her tenure as
Director of the Gompany.

Dr Sourendra Math Ghosal has vacated his Office as an Independent Director with effect from 11 August, 2016 by
virtue of the provisions of Section 167(1)(b) of the Gompanies Act, 2013 due to unavoidable circumstances. Your
Directors place on recond their appreciation for the valuable services rendered 1o the Company by Dr Sourendra Math
Ghosal during his tenure as Director of the Gompany.

Mr Udayan Ray and Mr Shiv Siddhant Marayan Kaul, retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and
being efigible offer themselhves for re-appoiniment.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Related Party Transactions entered into, during the year under review, were on armn's length basis and in the ordimary
course of business for the opertional and administrative bemefits of the GCompany. There were no contracis’
arrangements/transactions, with related parties which could be considered as material and which may have a potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Accordingly, no contracis/amangements/firansactions are being
reporbed in Form ACC-2.

RISK MANAGEMENT & MITIGATION

The Company has identiied vanious risks faced by the Company from different areas. The Company already has a
Risk Management Framework for laying down procedures to informn the Board members abouwt the nsk assessment
and minimization procedures. The Board has adopied a risk management policy for identification of elements of risk in
consultation with vanous functional heads to identify, assess and mitigate the major areas of risk associated with the
business of the Company. Appropriate structures are present so that risks are inherently monitored and controlied.
Risk identification, risk assessment and risk treatment procedures for all functions of the Company are reviewed on an
ongoing basis.

The Audit Commitiee and the Board reviews the Risk Management Framework on regular basis.

FIXED DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepied any depasits from the public.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES & RELATED DISCLOSURES

Your Company has mo employee of the category as specified in Rule 5{2) of the Companies (Appointrment anid
Remuneration of Manageral Personnel) Rules, 2014. Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as
required under Section 187(12) of the Gompanies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointrment and
Aemumneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided in Annexure — B.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLODGY ABSODRPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGOD

As required under provisions of the Gompanies Act, 2013 and Rulke 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 details
relating to Conservation of Enengy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Eamings and Outgo are given in
the Annexure - G, which is annexed hereto and formns part of the Directors’ Repaort.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has strictly observed the principles of gobod Corporate Gowvermance through accountability and
Iransparency.

A separate report on Corporate Govermnance as preseribed in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Discloswre
Requiremenits) Regulations, 2015 forms part of the Annueal AReport 2015-16 along with the Auditors” statement on its
compliance (Annexure 0.

COMPLAINTS RECEIVED BY THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMMITTEE
No complaint has been received by the Company during the year 2015-16.
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY (Vigil Mechanism)

The Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy as adopted by your Gompany has been posted on the website of the
Company.

The Auwdit Cormmittee of Directors are entrusted with the responsibility to oversee the Vigil Mechanism.
FUTURE PROSPECTS

Your Directors are confident that throuwgh revised DRSS a suitable restructuring scheme would be worked out for the
revival of the Company under the auspices of BIFR.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The details of Key Managerial Personnel who were appointed or had resigned during the year :

Sl Hame Designation Date of Date of
No. Appointment Resignation

1. Mr Swapan Kumar Mukheree Managing Director 0082015

2. Mr Kartick Kumar Chatierjes Managing Director & CEO 011020135

3. Mr Prasanta Pandit Chief Financial Cificer 31032016

4. Mr Sibaji Daita Chief Financial Cificer 18.05. 2018

3. Mr Indranil Mitra Company Secretary 301120135

. Mr Rahul Banenee Company Secretary 18.06.20148

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to section B2(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Adrinistration) Rules, 2014, extract of the Annual RAetum in the Form MGT — 8 forms part of this report in
Annexure = I

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Siaterments in the Directors” Report in regard to projections, estimates and expectations have been made in good faith.
Many unforeseen factors may come into play and affect the actual results, which could be difierent from what the
Directors envizage in terms of fulure performance and outhool.  Industry information contained in this Report, hawve
been based on information gathered from vanous published and unpublished reports and their accuracy, reliability and
completeness cannot be assured.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to record their sincere appreciation of the efforts put in by all the employees and their commitrnent
durimg the year in a very difficult and uncertain tirme which the Gompany is passing through. Your Directors also take
thiz opportunity to achknowledge the cooperation and assistance of Banks, Financial Institutions, Technology
Development Board, Govermment of India, Govermnment of West Bengal, WBIDC and BIFA. Fnally, your Direciors owe
their gratitude to all the Shareholders and Debenture Holders for their continuwed support to the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Direciors

Registered Office: NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED

‘Micco House”,

2 Hare Strest,

Kolkata — 700 001 RAJIVE KALL FKARTICK KUMAR CHATTERJEE

Date: August 11, 2016 CHAIRMAMN MANAGING INRECTOR

18



NICCO COFPOPATION LIMITED ﬁ

ANNEXURE -1
P. V. Subramanian B1/8, Regent Estate,
B.Com, LL B, ACS. Kolkata-T00 092, India.
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice Mobile: 98300 26425

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule Mo 8 of the Companies
{Appointment and Aemuneraton of Managerial Personnel) Aules, 2014]
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 317 MARCH, 2016.

To,
The Members,
Hicco Corporation Limited.

| have conducted the secretanial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good

corporate practices by Micco Corporation Limited (hereinafter called “the Company™). Secretarial Audit was

conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis of evaluating the corporate conducts J/ statulory
compliances and expressing my opinson thereon.

Based om my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other records

mainiained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agenis and authonzed

representatives durimg the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that, in my opinion, the Gompany, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31" March, 20168, has generally complied with the statutory

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism im

place 1o the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:-

1. | have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other records maintained by
Nicco Corporation Limited ("the Company’) for the financial year ended on 317 March, 2018 according to the
prowisions of:

{i} The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;
{ii} The Securities Gontracts (Regulation) Act, 18538 ("SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
(i} The Depositores Act, 1886 and the Regulations and Bye-Laws framed thereunder;

{iw) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1898 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 1o the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Cverseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Bormowings; and

(v} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1982 ["SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeowers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b} The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1982 and
Securities and Exchange Board of India [Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 20135;

()] The Securties and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenits)
Regulations, 20135;

(d} The Securiies amd Exchange Board of India (lssue of Gapital and Disclosure Requiremernts)
Regulations, 2009; and

(e} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (R egistars to an lssue and Share Transfer Agenits)
Regulations, 1893 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

2. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
Imdia Act, 1882 ["SEB| Act’) were nof applicable to the Gompany during the financial year under report:-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;
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(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
(c) The Securties and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
(d} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1888.

3 The Company is engaged in the business of manuacturing cables and undertaking projects work. As per
imforrmation provided by the Management, o Act specifically for the aforesaid businesses is/are applicable to
the Cormpamny.

4. | have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:-

{iy Secretaral Standards with respect to board and general meetings issued by the Instilute of Company
Secretaries of India; &

{ii} The Listimg Agreemenis entered into by the Gompany with the Stock Exchanges.

3. Dwring the penod under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned abowe except filing of cerain forms with MGA within the
prescribed time.

G. | further report that

(i) The Board of Directors of the Gompany is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
MNon-Executive Direciors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the percd under review were camed out in compliance with the provisions
of the Act;

(i} Adequate motices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings.
Agenda and notes on agenda were sent in advance and further information and clarfications on the
agenda iterns were provided for meaningful participation at the mestings; and

{iii} Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanirmoushy.

T. | furthier report that there are adequate systems and processes i the Company commensurate with the size
and ocperations of the Gompany to monilor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines, insluding general laws, labour laws, competition law and emvironment laws.

8. | further repart that the Gompany has been declared a Sichk Industrial Gompany in terms of Section 3(1)(o) of
the Sick Industrial Gompanies (Special Provisions) Act, 18835, BIFR had appointed Allahabad Bank as the
Operating Agency ("OA”). As per decision in the Jt. Lenders Meeting held on 5" September, 2012, Emst &
Young ("E&Y") had been appointed for carmying out Economic Viability assessment and development of the
Draft Aehabilitation Scheme ("OARS™). OAS had been circulated to all the secured lenders.

Finally morne than 75% approvals were received only on 17" March, 2015. In the meantime a few LCs & BGs
had devolved and as a result, the liabiliies envisaged in the DRS had increased substantially. A Revised DRS
was worked out and submitted to Allahabad Bank. In the Joint Lenders’ Meeting held on 16™ September,
2015, the Revised DRAS was discussed and circulated on 30™ October, 2015. A few amendments 1o the
Revised DRS were sugpested by the State Bank of India in the Jt. Lenders Meeting held 27 November,
2013. The modified Revised DRS after incorporation of the amendments have been circulated to Allahabad
Bank and all other secured lenders on 30 November, 2015. The Gompany has requested all Secured
Lenders 1o accond their approval so that the Revised DRS could be considered in the mext BIFR hearing on 7"
December, 2015. The hearing on 7 December, 2015 could not take place due to non-functioning of the BIFR
Board.

Allahabad Bank, the Lead Bank, vide its letter 7 NMovember, 2015 has already accorded their in- principle
approval of he DRS circulated on 30.10.2015. Subsequenty, State Bank of Indi, vide its letter dated 2™ April,
2018, has forwarded to their competent authority for necessary action and approval of the modified Revised
ORS.

The Company is following up with the remaining secured lenders for obtaining 73% approvals so that the
same can be moved before the BIFA.
BIFR at its hearing on 28™ Cctober, 2014, approved sale of Baripada unit and direcied the Operating Agency

to constitute an Asset Sale Committee (ASC) to take the sale forward. Constitution of ASC was approved by
BIFRA in its hearing on 28% January, 2013. ASG has appoinied M's LB Jha & Mr Sanjay Lahiri for valuation of
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the unit. Two valuation reports of Baripada unit done by M's LB Jha & Co., and Mr Sanjay Lahin along with
Tender Motice and Information Memorandum have been submitted to Allahabad Band.

Asset Sale Commitiee meeting was convened on 22™ February, 2016 for sale of Baripada unit where both the
valuation reports were made available to all the members for their penesal and advice. All the secured lenders
discussed on the valuation of assets and, after discussion at length, it was decided that the higher distress
value, afier rounding off o As.16.00 crore, will be eonsidered for Reserse Price.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Appendix-l and forms an integral
part of this repaort.

Place: Kolkata {PV SUBRAMAMNIAMN)
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice
Date: 11™ August, 2016 AGS MNo_: 4585
CoP' _Mo.: 2077
Appendix-I
(To the Secretarial Audit Report to the Members of Micco Corporation Limited for
the financial year ended 31 March, 2016)

To,
The Members,
Nicco Corporation Limited.

My Secretanal Audit Report for the financial year ended 31032018 of even date is to e read along with this letier.

1.

Place:

Dane:

Mainienance of secretanial record is the responsibility of the management of the Gompany. My responsibility
is 1o express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my awdit.

I have followed the awdit practices and processes as wene appropriate to obfain reasonable assurance about
the cormectness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure
that correct facts reflected on secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices | fallowed provide
a reasonable basis for my opinion.

| hawe not verfied the comectness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account of the
Company.

Wherewer required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Gornporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is
the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the werfication of procedures on test
basis.

The Secretarial Auwdit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company mor of the
efficacy of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Holkata {P V¥V SUBRAMAMNIAN)
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice
11™ August, 2016 AGCS No_: 4585

CoP Mo.: 2077
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ANNHEXURE -l
Form No. MGT -8
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2016

[Pursuant to section B2(3) of the Companies Act. 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Companies
(Managerment and Administration)Rules, 2014]

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS :

CIN: LEST01WE1 283 PLC036362

Registration Date: 31 May, 1983

Marne of the Company: NIGCO CORPORATION LIMITED

Categony'Sub Category of the Company: Cable Manufacturing Industry

Address of the Registered Office and Gonfact details: ‘“NIGGD HOUSE', 2 HARE STREET, KOLKATA
TOODO1, WEST BENGAL  INDIA. PHONE: 033 66285000, EMAIL 1D WWW

Whether listied company: YES

MNarme, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent: RED INFOTECH PVT. LTI,
1% FLOOR, TA, BELTALA ROAD, KOLKATA - T0D 026: PHONE: 033 2319 264172642 EMAIL 1D:

investors @ rdinfotech.in

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turmowver of the Gompany shall be stated:

5l No. Mame & Description of NIC Gode of the % to total turnover of the
main products/services Product/service Company
1 Gables 3610 100
2 Projects - -

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

HOLDINGSUBS | % of | Applicable

HAME & ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CiN IDIARY/ASSOC] | shares | Section
Ho.
ATE reedd
1 |HIGED FINANGCIAL SERVIGES LIMITED UESEE i WE B85PLOGIEETAE ASSOGIATE 46.18% 2(8)
2 |NIGGD PARKS & RESDATS LIMITED LEZ2418WE1 889PLCO464E6T ASSOGIATE 20% 2(8)

d |HIGGD ENGINEERING SERVIGES UMITED | UF4210WB2000P L2471 ASSOGIATE 23.58% 2(8)

4 |NICCO VENTURES LIMITED UBANWE2D00P L0 153 ASSOCIATE 22.43% 2(8)
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V. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i} Category-wise Share Holding as on 31.03.2016
Category of Mo of Shares hedd at the Mo. of Shares hehd af the k1
Shaneholders Esescpiimiiingy cef thees yesar (10 0420 5) end of the year (31 00 20 E) Change
Demat Physical Total ok Demat Physical Total = of aunrg
Total Total ihe
Shares Shares year
A POmDers
(1) Inciarc
{3 Inchvidual HLIF 24717041 Kl 24717041 1B 74% | 24717041 5000000 | 28717041 H.M% 2HM%
(b)) Ceniral Gowt hil Mil ] ] ] ] ] Hil ]
{e) Siaie Cowt (5) kil Ni hil Ml hil hil Ml Nil Hil
{d) Bodes: Coap. 20845184 Mil 20845184 15.81% | 20845164 ] 2E48164 155 [OU58)
{E) Barks ! Fl il Mi il il il il Pl il il
{F) Any Cther kil Ni hil Ml hil hil Ml Nil Hil
Sub-oial (&) (1) 45565205 Mil 4556505 | 34.55% | 45585205 | S000000 | SOESEIAS 3855 2.30%
(@ Forsgn |
&) MRS - Indraouals ] Mil ] ] ] ] 1] il ]
{bi) Other - Individuals hil Mil ] hil Hil ] ] il il
(=) Bodies Comp. Kl i hil il il hil Bl il hil
{d) Barks ! Fl il Mi il il il il Pl il il
{E) Ay OfNEF.... il Mi il il il il Ml il il
Sub-ioial (B (2] il Mi il il il il Pl il il
Total shamehoiding o
Promaier (&) = (Al | 25583205 Mi 45553705 | 34.55% | 45583206 | SO00000 | SOSE3MS | SABMd% | 2090
B PO Sharenaang
1. Irstitutions:
&) Mubal Funds 45 1376 34 DD 45 33r8 347 (R ]
{b) Barks /Al 475408 B52455 1 DEEE1 DB ToEE0E0 ‘56524555 T240535 92 A.47%
(&) Central Govi Hil Mil Hil ] ] Hil ] Hil il
o) Staie Govjs) il Mi il il il il Pl Hil il
{E} Vierture Capital Furds il Mi il il il il Pl il il
{F) Insurance Companies 1150874 Ni 1150874 0.8 hil hil Ml Nil {0.B8%)
g Fils hil i i il il il Bl il il
[l Fioreign Veniure Capita _
Funds Hil Mil Hil ] ] Hil ] il il
i} CEreers [spetify) il Mi il il il il Pl Hil il
Sub-oial (B)i1)- 1388125 EE5831 2243858 1.7 1125 565581 T243858 92 J.ob%
2. NorHrstitubiors
(&) Bodies Corp.
{1} indian AFEIT0E 1152853 A4344081 3355% | 3847ES44 ] 384Ta5d4 28 11% (S.dde)
(i) Owersess ] Mil ] ] BFEg ] &7ae e 0 %
{b) Incividuals
i} Indifvicusl shanehoiders
hoiding nominal share capital|
upio As. 1 lakh 23080850 | 2473585 25063445 1RO% | 262686811 2506151 2ETHETES 2% 2%
(i) Incividual sharehoiders
hokding nomirel shane
capiial in excess of Fis. 1 lake] 12523300 2238486 14751885 11.18% BSAET30 2235408 11785228 a8t (2.98%)
() Cthers (specify) NRI Ml Hi il il M il Kl hil il
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Sub-iotal [E)2)- 7 77 | Seeral | BATOEDT | ELow | TARBGd | 4ndiedy | e | Goek | e
Total Public Sharehoiding
[E)={BH1 HENZ) 7oroare | esoosTs | eemiaryT | es4sw | TooieTme | tmeovare | sesidoy | esoew | oy
C. Shares heid by Custodian
for GDAs & ADRS Mil Ml Ml i Ml Ml Ml Nl i
Grand Total (A+8+0) 125356007 | ese057s | 131877482 | 100Me | 121580004 | 1Soova7s | 138svTaE2 | t00 Ml
(i} Shareholding of Promoters as on 31.03.2016
51 [Ghareholder s Name Sharenokding At The Beginning OFf The | Share HoMang At The End OF The Year | % Change
Mo Year (004 2015) {31.03.2016) In Share
During The
— — — Year
Ho. Of % OF Total | Df Shares | No. OF % OF Total | % OF Shares
Shares |Shares Of The| Pieoged/ | Shares |Shares Of The| Pledged)
Compary | Encumbered Compary | Encumbsered
To Total To Total
shares Shares
1 | MIrs M M Kaul 150626 0.11% 0.331% 150626 0.11% D256 "% NIl
2 | MrRajwe Kaul 100000 0.08% 0.210% 100000 0.07% TR [0.01%)
Mrs Anjall Bhan Kamberar 0287 % )
3 il 150000 0.11% 0.328% 150000 0.11% ' Mil
I | Micco Uco Allance Crect Lid | 4008875 ERELH 0.000% 1065875 X7 0.000% [0.12%)
5 | M5 Paliavi Priyadarshain Kaul | 2000 0.00% 0.000% 2000 0.00% 0.000"% Ml
8 | Shesnar imfotech Py Lid 450000 5% 0767 % 450000 35% CET 0.12%)
5 | Mo Financal Senices LI | p3sua 1.81% 5.204% ZIB0432 1.74% 4.708% [0.07%)
8 | Fosocaied nousha DevCod | Besdse 0.65% 1.B05% BE3A5A 0.63% 1.708% [0.02%)
Hindustnan \Wire & Mesal 200508 0.22% 0.635% 200508 0.21% 0.575% {0.01%)
2 | Proc L
10 | Henciies Tradng Corpn PWi L | 1380705 1.05% 3.0090% 1380705 1.01% 2731% [0.04%)
41 | Kania Bhan Propemes Pyl LK 7455 0.01% 0.000% 7455 0.o% 0.000% Kil
Rapve Kaul (2N Bhan :
; . 171380 0.13% 0.000% 171380 0.13% 0.000% Hil
12 | memorial Charity Trust)
MICCO Resiructunng
13 | Eres Trust Fund 23800185 18.05% 0.000% | 28800185 21.04% 0.000% 298%
Mr Rajive Kaul [G.K_Khemka
14 | Crarty Trusy 342800 0.28% 0.000% 342800 0.25% 0.000"% {0.01%)
Finika Eecirncal &
15 | Enginesrs PvtLid 7376735 5.50% 0.000% 7376735 5.30% 0.000% {0.20%)
TOTAL 45563205 34 555 AT, | 50563205 35.84% 10.315% 230%
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{iii)

Change in Promotors' Shareholding | please specify, if there is no change )

NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED ﬁ

Sharehoiding at the beginning of Casmulative Shareholding
=1 e year (01 .04.2015) during the year
M. Mo of Shares | % of total Shares | Mo of Shares | % of total shares
of the Company of the Gompany
At the beginming of e year 45583205 34.55%
Date wise increase/ Geclease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for  increase  /decrease (e
alictmenttransienbomnes! sweal equity ete):
Micco Restructuring Emplovees Trust Fund
At the beginning of the year 23600165
Ason 21 Decermber, 2015 — Allotment 50,000,000
At the end of the year 28800185 21.04%
At the end of the year 50583205 36.94%
{w} Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders [other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRs)
Sl Sharefvohding at the beginning of the Cusnulative Sharehobding
Ho. yeanjin. 0. 5) durineg the year
For Esch of the Top 10 Shanreholders Mo of Shanes %% of total Mo, of %% of total
Shares of the Shanes shires of the
Company Company |
1 ASSET RECONSTRIUCTION COMPANY
(INDHA) LTD
E.HI‘“"EtEgm E‘ﬂ'ﬂ'ﬁm 1542530 11.89
b. Changes during the year Mo Change during the year
£. At the end of year 15425304 11.27
2 CREST LDGISTICS & ENGINEERS PYT LTD
{previously REL UTILITY ENGINEERS LTDj
a At the beginning of e year 13377000 1014
b Chamges during the year Mo Chanoge during the year
. At e end ME’ 133770 B.77
3 RAMD ESTATES PVT LTD
a_ At the beginning of he year FrTame -
b. Changes during the vear Mo Change during the year
€. Af the end of year SFranaa 275
4 ASHU TRADECDM PYT LTD
a At the beginning of the year 2455060 188
b Changes duning the year Mo Change during the year
c.At the end of year 2455080 1.78
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=1 MANISHA PINCHA

2. Af the beginning of the year 1333327 1.

b. Ghanges during the year Mo Chane during the year

c.AL e end of year ; g7
B. LIFE INSURARNCE CORPORATION OF INDIA

a. At the beginning of the vear 1143181 0.8

b. Ghanges during the year Mo Change during the year

c At the end of year 1143181 083
T. RAJEMNDRA PANNAL Al RAKHECHA

a. At the beginning of the year B40067 g

b.Changes during the year Mo Chamcpe during the year

c.At the end of year 040067 068
a. AL PEMA INDUESTRIES LIMITED

a. At the beqinning of the vear 236184 oue2

b. Ghanoes during the year Mo Chancse during the year

. At the end of year 825154 060
a BMA WEAI TH CRENTORS LIMITED

a. At the beginning of the year 856425 oL49

b. Changes during the year Acquires 205 Equity Shanes

£ At the end of year E56020 047
0. DCM SHRIRAM CREDIT & INVESTMENT LTD

a. A the beginning of the vear B535a2 049

b. Changes during the year Mo Chiamcpe during the year

. At the end of vear 853382 047

(v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :
5. Sharehoiding at e Cumuiaiive Shansholding
M. beginning of the yeari0 04.2015) ouring the year
= of il Mo of %% of iotal
For Esch of the Dineciors and KMP Moo of Shares shares of the Shares shares of the
- Cornpany Company
. Mr. Rajive Faul:
4. Al e beginning of the year 100000 D.08%
b. Changes durng fhe year Mo Change during the yvear
¢ Al theend of vear 100000 0.0
2
Ms._ Pallavi P. Kaul:
4. Al e beginning of the year 2000 000"
b.  Changes during e year ho CGhange during the vear
c. Al e end of year 2000 0.00P:

V.

INDEETEDNESS
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Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding faccrued but not due for payment

{Rs in Lakhs
Secured Loans Unsecuned Depaosits Tuoital
exeiuding deposits LisanS I bitedness
Indebtedness at the beginining of the financial year.
i. Prncipal Amount 13,677.25 3104.30 - 18881.55
ii. Infenest due bt m‘tpﬂ.ld 1488 02 1187.78 - 288561
iii. Inberest accrued but not due. - -
Total 1il-ﬂ+iﬁ: 15,3685.27 4302 08 - 19,887 38
Change in Indebiedness during the financial year.
= Agdition 10673.39 - - 106873.39
=  Reduction -
Met CI 1D673.39 - - 10673.39
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year.
i F'I'ir'-t:ipa] Amount 21,333.43 3104.30 - 2443773
ii. Inberest due but not paed 4705.23 119778 - 580302
iii. Inberest accrued but not due - - -
Tokal {i-+iiHil) 26036.94 430208 - 30, 34075
V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSOMNNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director & CEO:
{Rs in Lakhs)
S Particulars of Bemuneration BT, Swapan Funmsar Mr Kartick Kumar Tobal Anmunt
M. Mukiverjes — Managing Chatierjes — Managindg
Direcior Direcior & CED
(01 0415 - FL0E15) (01015 — 310320 5)
1. | Gross salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in 68.75 375 10.50
section 17]1) of the Income Tax
Aot 1861
b) wWalue of pemuisites w's 17(2) Income 147 OB 205
Tax Act, 1BE1.
) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income Tax Act 18461. Mil Mil
2. | Stock Option Mil Mil
3 | sweat Equity Mil il
4. | commission
- a5 % of profit. Mil Mil
- gthers, specify. Mil il
3.
Others- Mil Mil
1255
Total [A) 7.82 4.83
Ceiling as per the Act Rs 30.00 lacs As 30.00 lacs As 30000 lacs

B. Remuneration to other Directors:
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All Non-Executive, Non-Independent Directors have forgone their sitting Fees with effect from Meeting held after 1™
Movember, 2014.

All Independent Directors have forgone their Sitting Fees with effect from Meetings held after 12* February, 2015.

Taotal Ma

ial Remumeration {A+8)

Rs 12,53, 000-

Crverall ceiling as per the Act

In view of absence of Profit, the above remuneration was

paid as mirimum remuneration.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than MD/Manager™TD
(As in Lakhs)
"5‘; Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Company Secretary CFO Total
1 Gross Salary
a. Salary as per provisions contained in
saction 17(1) the Income-tax Act, 18461. 858 11.05 17.64
b. Value of perguisites w's 17(2) Income fax
Act 1061, 0.68 1.08 1.73
. Profits in liew of salary umder section Nl Nil Nil
17(3) Income -tax Act, 1961
Stock Option il il Il
Sweat BEquity il il Il
4 GOmmisSon
- a5 Y of profit il il Il
- oihers, specify il il Il
a3 Crhers, please specify il il Ml
Toial T23 1214 18.30
D. PENALTIES /FUNISHMENT ACOMPOUNDING OF OFFENGES :
Type Section of the Brief Descriphon Details of Penalty! Authority Appeal made, if
Companies At Punishiment | Compounding | (AMNCLTICD | any jgive details)
fee Impesed URT)
W COMPANY
Penalty NA HA A HA, MA
Punishment HA HA A HaA, MA
) g pr 2T A
Compounding
(. DIRECTORS
" MA HA A MA MA
PuRishment HA HA A HA, MA
MA HA A MA MA
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERSIN DEFAULT
by HA HA A HaA, MA
Punishment NA HA A HA, MA
HA HA A HaA, MA
Compounding
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ANNEXURE - A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Structure & Development
Power Cables Division:
There has been reasonable growth in Energy Gables, High Voltage cables, Medium Voltage and Low Voliage
Power Cables seciors. Margins howewer continued to be under pressure due to over-capacity and competificn in
the cables industry.

Project Division:
The Division has been sold as per AAIFA/ BIFR order.
Segment-wise performance
Power Cables Division:
As the working capital had virtually dried up, the Company had to resort 1o temporary suspension of work. It is
therefore necessary to get the revised DRS approved by all the lenders and finally by BIFR for its implementation
at the earfiest and your Company’s management is at fight earmest striving in this direction.
Project Division
As reported earlier the sale of the Division has been concluded.
Business Strategy

Power Cables Division:

The priority of the Gompany and this Division is to endeavour with the existing kenders to get approval of Draft
Rehabilitation Scheme (0AS) followed by approval of BIFA and thereafter re-open the plants.

The Division has drastically reduced its manpower as also the operating cost. Onee the operations start, focus
an R&0 would also continue in developing new products for both existing markets as also for new markets.
Efforts would be made to increase the volume of Speciality Cables especially in the segrments of Railways, Ship
Wiriting., Wind Energy, Defence, Material Handling and Electrical Contacts.

With a view to optimise resources and also to improve profitability it has been decided for sale of Baripada Plant.
BIFR has also approwved the proposal and has constituted Asset Sale Committee for the purpose.

Project Division:

Efforts will continue to realize all outstanding debts including those under Arbitration and Gourt Cases.
Risks and Concerns

Power Cables Division:

The main concem is early approval and implementation of DRS package. On reacpening of the plants efforts will
be made to renew the contacts with the customers and secure orders.

Project Division:

The only concem is to collect the receivables perfaining to the earier executed contracts  which have been
retained in the Cormpany pursuant to the sale of this Division.
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Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

Internal Control procedures viz. authorzations and approvals of transactions are well laid down aiming towards
efficient usage and protection of Company's resources as also 1o ensure strict adherence to statutory compliance
requirernents. External Charered Accountant firms conduct Internal Audits at specified imervals. The Audit
Commitiee of the Board reviews the Infemal Audit Reports with Management observations along with action
taken reports on earier decisions. The Audit Committee monitors the performance, efficacy in resource utilization
and the statutory compliances. The Audit Gommittee’s obserations and recommendations are reporbed to the
Board of Directors. Im addition, the Risk Register is maintained and periodic risk assessments are camed out.
Moreower both the Audit Committee and the Board conduct reviews of the actions ansing from the said Risk
Analysis.

Human Resource Management

The major focus has been to build a cohesive and lean team for effectively implementing the desired objectives
of the Company.

Financial and Operational Performance

For the year ended 31.3_ 20168 the Company has sufiered loss of Rs. 5087 crores. Since the Plants were non-
operational, there was hardly any turmower. The primary focus has been on approval and implementation of DRSS
package. The perfformance efficiency measures have been crystallised and built in 1o the DORS package.

Dourthoiole:

The Company has potential to is turm around for which the single most need is o obtain approval of the ORS
froon BIFR, though unfortunately it is a time consuming process.

Cautionary Statement

Staterments, if any, in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report in regard to projections, estimates and
expectations have been made in good faith. Many unforeseen factors may come into play and afiect the actual
results, which could be different from what the Directors envisage in termms of future perfformance and outhoeolk.

Raw maierial availability and its prices, demand and pricing in the Company’s markets, changes in government
regulations, economic developments in India, shordage of working capital, delay in approval of ORE and other
incidental factors could make a difierence to the Company's operations. Industry inforrmation contained in this
Report, have been based on information gathered from varows published and unpublished reports and their
accuracy, reliability and completeness cannot be assured.
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ANNEXURE-B

Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

{iy The Ratio of emunemtion of each Director to the Median (pro-rata) remunemabon of Employees of the Company for the
financial year ended 31.03.2016:

5l Remuneration paid in Ratio'Times to median
HNo. | Name Designation Fy 2015-18 (A5 in lakhs) Rermumneration
1 M Swapan Kumar 3 - g.r2" 9.08
Mukherjee Managing Director
2 Mr Kartick Kumar - 8 522 5.47
- Mana Ourecior & GED
Chatterjee ging

- For the period 017 April, 2015 1o 30" September, 2015.
** For the period 01 October, 2015 to 31 March, 2018.

(i)

The percentage increase/decrease in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary in the

financial year.
El-lc.: MHame Designation R nerat R nerat P'En:mmgp Imria:se.f
' paidin F¥ paidin F¥ .
201516 201415 TemuUneratan 'm'“'in'
(Rsinlakhs) | (Rsin @kns) previous year {
locs)
MIr Swapan Hurnar . .
1| pshen Managing Director 872 2131 (58.08%)
M Kartich Kurnar . .
2 - Ma Director & GBEO 522 - -
Ghat niaging Di
General Manager & .
BT Inaciranil BT T.52 11.28 J3.33%
Company Secreiarny { )
4 Mr Prasanita Pandit CHRO 12.58 12.59 (OLO7FESa)

»  For the period 017 April. 2015 1o 307 November, 2015.

(i)

fiv)
)

{wi)
i)

There was no increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2015-16 as compared to 2014-

15,

The number of permanent Employees on the rodls of the Company as at 31.03.2018:- 542,

Average perceniage increase already made in the salares of employees other than Managenal Personnel in the last
financial year and its comparson with the percentage increase in the managenal rermuneration and pestification
thereof and point out if there are exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial rermuneration.

There was no increase in salanes during the year.

The Key Parameters of any varable component of remuneration availed by the Directors: None.

Affimation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

The Company affirms that remuneration s as per the remunemtion policy of the Company.

Place : Kolkata

Date

D August 11, 2016

RAJIVE KAUL

On benhalf of the Board of Directors

Ghairrman
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ANNEXURE C

Pursuant to Section 134({3)(m)} of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies [(Accounts) Rules,
2014.

A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Mil
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTIOM
IMil
S, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
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ANNEXURE — D

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNAMNCE :

Company's policies on the Corporate Govemanse and due compliance report on specific areas wherever appiicable for the
year ended on 31 March, 2016, are given hereunder divited into the following areas -

Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance

Nicco believes that good Coporte Govemance is essential to achieve long term Corporate Goals and 0 enhance
stakeholders” value. Your Gompany's business objective and that of its Management and Employees is to manufachure and
market the Company’s products and senvices in such a way S0 as 10 create value that can be sustained over a long terrn for
all its stakeholders, inciuding Shareholders, Employees, Customers, Govemment and the Lenders. In addition o compliance
with regulatory requirements, Micco endeavours to ensure that the highest standards of ethical conduct are met throughout
the organisation. The principes of good Gompomte Govemance rowgh accountability, tansparency and professionalism
have always been followed by your Gompany.

Board of Directors
{8} Composition & Category of the Board

The Board of Directors comprises of eleven members consisting of one whole time Director and ten Mon-Executive
Directors, owut of which six are Independent Directors which include one woman director. The Non-Executive and
Independent Directors are eminent professionals, drawn from amongst persons with expenence in business anmd
industry, finance, law and public enterprises. The composition is as under ; -

E Name of the Chrectar Category of No. of aiher Na. of oiher Board No. of giher Board
M. Directors Directorsnips Commitiee(s) of Commitiee{s) of which
held which hefshe is a Member | helsheisa
[exciuding Foreign [Audit Committes & [Audit Commities &
Companies and Stakeholoers Relationship | Stakehoiders Relationship
Private Companies] Comimities] Commities]
1. War Fiajve Kl ROn-EXBTtive — 5 5 i
Chaimman
z Wir Uicayan Ray Hon-Executive
‘ige- Chairman 3 - -
3. MAT Hartics, HurTar Wianaging Dhrector & i} ] i}
Chanenee CE0_
4 Wir Narottam Das MO EXeCUtve 3 2 -
— Inoepenoer
5 Wir Prabir Chakravarti Hon-Executive 2 A B}
Inoepencart
B. WA SUJIT PoCCar HOM-EXECUve . - :
- - noependart
T M5 Pallan hON -EXEGUTVE . - -
Priyadarshini Kaus _
8. WA Shiv Seochant WO — EXECUTVE 4 - -
Kaul
B Or Dilp Kumar Data MO — Execuive ; : i}
— Inoepenoent
10. | Mr Tapan Chak hON — EXBcUive ; : -
— Inoepenoer
11. | DrSourendra Mam HOM-ExXecutive ; ] B}
Ghasal Incependent
mﬂmpm Kumar hianaging Dwecior _ i _
Mr Hir| Keda* MO EXECUTHE _ j _
Mominee of TDB _
Or Chanah Mon-Exepuineg
Bhattacharya*+ - - -
Nominee of TDB

* Resigned with effect from the close of business hours of 30™ September, 2015.
* Momination withdrawn w.e.f. 18% September, 2015.
** Nomination withdrawn w.ef. 27% July, 2018
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Mr. Mahender Ralhan has been appointed as an Observer as a Mominee of ARCIL on the Board of the Company at the
Eoard Meeting held on 18 May, 2015.

Hone of the Directors hekd Directorship in mone than 10 Public Limited Companies andfor were members of mome than 10
commitiess or acted as Chairperson of more than 5 Commitiees across all Public Limited Companies in which they wene
Dinectors.

Hone of the Independent Directors served a5 Independent Director in more than 7 listed Companies.

No Director is related to any ofher Director on the Board in terms of e definition of ‘relatve” given under e Companies
Act 2013 except Mr Rajive Kaul, Ms Pallavi Privadarshini Kaul and Mr Shiv Siddhant Marayan Kawl, whio ane father,
daughter and 5on respectively.

Code of Conduct

A Code of Gonduct has been formulated for the Directors and seniocr management personnel of the Company and the same
is available on the Company's website. A declamtion from the Managing Direcior that all Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel have duly complied with the Code of Conduwet for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 forms
part of the Annual Report The duties of the Independent Directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 has been
suitably imcorporated in the Code of Conduct, as necessarny.

Information to Board

Hecessary information as specified in Part A of Schedule I of the SEBI (Listing Obdigations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (the SEBI Regulations 2015) inciuding, inter alia, quaneny statutory compliance reports, updaies, annual
budgets as and when applicable, are placed, before the Board for its review and consideration.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

During the year, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 12™ Febnsary, 2018 without the attendance of
non-independent directors and members of management

Number of Board Meetings held and atterdance of Directors during Financial year 2015-16:
{i) Four Meetings of e Board of Directors were held during the year ended on 31~ March, 2016. These
were held on -
1) 18™ mMay, 2015;
{2) 13 August, 2015;
vermber, ;a
3) 12™ Movember, 2015; and
i5) 12™ Febnsary, 2018

{fi) The attendance recond of each of the Directors at the Board Meetings during the year ended on 317
March, 2016, and at the last Annual General Meeting and Fees paid to them for atending the Board
Meetings anre as under - -

SIM | Hame of Directors Mo. of Board Aftendance at the | Sitting fees paid to the Directors for
o. Meetings attended a5t AGM atiending Board Meetings
[Rs.)

1. Mr Bajive Kaul 4 Yies Mil

2. Mr Udayan Ray 4 Tes il

3. Mr Kartick Kumar Chatieres 2 = Mil

4. Mr Swapan Kumar Mukherjee 2 NA® Nil

=1 Mr Narottam Oas 3 Mo Mil

B. Mr Prabir Ghakravarti 3 TES il

7. Mr Sujit Poddar 3 Yies Mil

B. Mr Mirgj Hela Ml MO Nil

B Ms Pallavi Priyadarshini Kaul 2 B5 Mil

10. | MIr Shiv Siddhant Narayan Kaul 4 Yes il

11. | Dr Dilip Kumar Data 1 Yes Mil

12. | Mr Tapan Chaki 2 Yes Mil

13 Dr Sourendra Math Ghosal 2 Mo Mil

14, DOr Chaitali Bhattacharya il HA® Mil

MA* means Mot Applicable as the said directors were either not appointed / resigned as Directors at the relevant time.
All Non Executive, Non-Independent Directors have foregone their Sitting Fees with effect from Meetings heid afer 11™
MNowvember, 2014.
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All Independent Directors have foregone their Sitling Fees with effect from Meetings heid after 12™ February, 2015.
Audit Cormmithes
(i) The Audit Commites was constituted by the Board at its meeting held on 30 April, 1999,
The role and terms of reference of the Committee are in conformity with the provisions of section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Regulations, 2015.
The Audit Committee comprises of the folliowing three Non-Executive Directors -
{1) Mr Narottam Das
{2) Mr Prabir Ghakravarti, and
[3) Mr Sujit Poddar
The Committee has elected Mr Marottam Das as its Chairman.
(i} AN the members of the Audit Committes are financially Ifermte and are having accounting and related financial
management expertise. All members are Independent Directors of the Gompany.
(i) The Audit Committee Meetings during the Financial Year 2015-16 were held on 18™ May, 2015, 12® August, 2015, 1%

November, 2015 and 12® February, 2016. The attendance of each Audit Gommitiee Member and Fees paid for attending
the Audit Commitiee Meetings anre as under : -

Marme of the Auwdit Mo. of meetings Sitting Fees paid to the Member for

Cormmitiese Member Attended attending Audit Committes Meetings
[R5

Mr Mamittam Das 3 il

Mr Prabir Ghakravarti 4 il

M Sujit Poddar 4 Mill*

‘Foregone Sitting Fees with effect from Meetings held after 12™ February, 2015,

(v} At the invitation of the Ghairman of the Audit Commitiee, the Managing Director, CFO, representatives from
varnous Divisions of the Company, Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors, ete., also attended the Audit
Committes Meetings to respond o queries rised at the Commitiee Meetings.

(¥} Mr Indranil Mira, General Manager and Company Secretary had functioned as the Secretary of the Audit
Committee till the Meeting held on 11% Movember, 2015, subseqguent to which he resigned from the services of the
Company w.e.f. the close of business hous of 30™ November, 2015. Thereafter Mr Rahul Banerjee has been appointed

as the Company Secretary of Nicco Corporation Limited w.ef. 18% May, 2018 and therefore from that date he has been
funectioning as the Secretary of the Audit Gommitiee.

Homination & Remuneration Commitbes
The robe of Momination & Aemuneration Commitee includes the areas laid out in section 178 of the CGompanies
Act, 2013 and Part D of Schedule 1| of SEBI Regulations. 2015,

Composition
The Momination & Remuneration Gommitiee compnses of three Directors, all of whom are Independent,
Mion Executive Directors.

The present compaosition of the Momination & Remuneration Commitiee is as follows - -

1. | Mr Naroitam Das Ghairrnan
2. | Mir Prabir Ghakrayart Member
3. | Mr Sujit Poddar Member

Meetings and Attendance
The Gommittee met once on 12% August, 2015 during the Financial Year ended on 31 March, 2016. Attendance of the
Members at the Gommittee Meeting and Fees paid to them for attending the Meeting are as under :-

Name of the Nomination & Mo of Meetingis | Siting Fees paid fo the Member
Remuneration Commities attended for attending Meeting's
Member [As.)

Mr Namoitam Cas 1 i

Mr Prabir Chakravarti 1 N

Mr Sujit Poddar 1 N

- Fongone Sitting Fees w_ef Meetings heid afier 12™ February. 2015.
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Remuneration Policy

The Company's philosophy for emuneration of Directors, key managerial personnel and all other employees is based on the

commitment of fpstering a culture of leadership with trust. The Company has adopbed a Policy for remuneration of Directors,

Hey Managernial Personnel and other employees, which is aligned to this philesophy. The key factors considered in

forrmutating the Policy are as under:

(a3) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient 1o attract, retain and motivate to perform as per
the quality required to competently run the Company ;

i) relationship of remuneration fo job responsibilities is clear and meets appropriate perfomance benchrmarks; and

i) remunermation comprses of Salary and Perguisites.

DETAILS OF BEMUNERATION TO MANAGING INRCCTOR

Mr Swapan Kumar Mukhenee Mr Kartick Kumar Chatterjee
{from 1™ April, 2015 to 30™ September, 2015} | (from 17 October, 2015 to 317
March, 2018)
RS RS

Basic 880,000 S60.000
HIFRA - -
Gonveyance Allowance - -
Prof. & Exps. Allowance - -
Servant Allowance 15, a0 15,000
Sub-Total 675,000 375,000
Conitribution to P_F and
other Funds
Cont. 1o Provident Fund 78,200 43,200
Ciont. 1o Grabuity Fund - -
Sub-Total 79, 200 43,200
Ciont. to Superannuation - -
Fund
Prov for Leave
Encashment
U b-Total - -
Gas & Electncity 15,340 20,028
Soft Furmnishing 10, D 10,000
Medical Reimbursement 22,007 16,544
Gilub & Home Enter Exp S0, a0 37.500
Leawe Travel Allowance 200, D 210,000
Pemuisite value of - -
Furniture

| Syb-Total 117,357 104,070
Total 871,557 522 370

Stakeholders Relationship cum Grievance Committes

The Commitee presently comprises of Mr Marottarn Das, a Mon-Executive Independent Director, as the Ghairman. Other
members ae Ms Pallavi Priyadarshini Kaul, Mr Shiv Siddhant Marayan Kaul and Mr Udayan Ray, all are Non-Executive
Directors. The terms of reference of the Commitiee inter-alia include looking into the redressal of Shareholders' complaints
like transfer of shares, non- receipt of share certificates after tansfer, mon-receipt of Balance Sheet. non-receipt of declared
dinidends, ete.

The roke of Stakehoiders’ Relationship cum Ghevance Gommittes includes as specified in Part D of Sehedule 11 of the SEBI
Regulations, 2015.

The Share Department of the Cormpany and the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s RED Infoteeh Pyt. Lid. attend to
all grievances of the Shareholgers and Imvestors received directly or through SEBI. Siock Exchanges, Department of
Company Affairs, Registrar of Companies, ete.

Continuous effarts are made to ensure that grievances are mone expeditiously redressed.
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Four meetings of the Committee were held during the period under review, the dates being 19™ May, 2015, 13™ August,
2015, 12* Movember, 2015 and 12® February, 20186.

Compliance Officer
Mr Rahul Baneree Company Secretary (email id: rahulbaneree @niccogroup.com), is the 'Compliance Officer of the
Company for the requirements under the SEEI Regulations, 2015.

Shareholders’ Gomplaints and Redressals during 01.04.2015 10 31.03.2018:

Types of Non- Baoin- Mon- Baoin- M- M- Others Gomplaints Complainis  Total
Grevances receipi receipt of receipt recept  receipt receipt of recaivedecened

A of shares Balance of of of credit of from from

Categones after Sheet declared  duplicate exchanged Demaierialised SEEI Shock

TransfelDividends Shares Shares Shares  Exchanges

Humiber of pending Share Transfers: Hil

Deatails of Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed
The details periaining fo the Directons) seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing AGM of the Company is given
in the Notice of the AGM.

& General Body Meetings
(a) The details of Annual General Meetings held in the last three years were as under : -

sl AGM Day Oate Time Wenue Mo of Special
HMo. Resolubons
passed
1. 3™ Tuesday 24082013 | 11.00 |-Wiliamson Magor Hal™ of 2
AGM am. |The Bengal Chamber of Gommerce & Industry,

8, Nedaji Subhas Road, Kolkata 700 001

MACTday 29,00 2014 11.30 |“Wiliamson Magor Hai™ of 3
am. |The Bengal Chamber of Commence & Industny,
8, Netaji Subhas Foad, Kolkata 700 004

20082015 | 11.30 |~Wiliamson Magor Hadr of 3
am. |The Bengal Chamber of Commence & Industny,
8, Metaji Subhas Foad, Kolkata 700 004

E

No Special Resolutions were put through Postal Ballot last year.

For the 32™ AGM, e-voting options wene provided to the sharehoiders for all items of business along with postal balliot option
for those shareholders who do not have access o e-voting facility.

Subsidiaries

The Company has no Subsidiary Company.

Disclosures

(&) Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions that rmay have potential confliet with the
interests of the Company at largs
There are no materally significant transactions made by the Company with its related party which anre at potential

conflict with the interest of the company at large. The related party transactions are given in the notes to the Balance
Sheet and Staterment of Profit & Loss.
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(o)

(=)

(a)

Risk Management

Business risk evaluation and management i an ongoing process within the Gompany. During the year under neview,
a oetailed exercise on “Aisk Assessment and Management' was carmed out covering the entire gamut of business
opemtions. The Boand provides supervision of the nsk management process followed by the Company and reviews
the progress of the action plan for each risk on a quanerly basis.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penaltes, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchanges or SEBl or any statutory authority, on any matier related to capital markets, during the last three
years

Mo penalties or striciures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any Statubory
Authority on any matter related to the capital mankets, during the last three years. The Company has complied with all
the requirements of the previous Listing Agreement with NSE and also with the provisions of the SEBI Reguilations,
2015, as well a5 regulations and guidelines of SEBI as issued from time to time.

Vigil Mechanism

A Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy has been established for Directors and employees to report genuine
concerns about unethical behaviowr, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Gonduet. The
Policy is available on he Company's websile www.Niccogroup. com.

CEO / CFD Certification

The aforesaid Gertificate duly signed by the Managing Direcior & GED and the GFO of the Company in respect of the
financial year ended 31 March, 2016 has been placed before the Board.

Means of Communication

In compliance with the requirements of the SEEBI Regulations, 2015, the Company. on guartery basis, inimates audited
financial results to the Stock Exchange after they are faken on record by the Board. Further, the results ane also published in
Business Standard and Sukhabar and uplcaded on the Company’s website 30 NicCoOroun com

Code of Conduet for prevention of Insider Trading

The CGompany has adopted a Code of Conduct to reguiate, monitor and report trading by Insiders as per SEEI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as approved by the Boand of Directors with a view to requlate trading in Securities by the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other designated persons.

General Shareholder Information
{a) Annual General Meeting to be held

ib)

Cay, Date, Tirme and Yenue

Day : Tuesday

Date . September 27, 2016

Time : 1100 AR

Venue : Auditgrium on 10™ Floor of Indian
Chamber of Gommerce,
IGC Towers, 4 India Exchange Place,
Eokata 700 001.

Financial Galendar (Tenfative and subject to change)
Faor the Financial Year 2018-17 -
Financial Reporting for the Quarers ended

* 1% Quarter ending on 30™ June, 2018 ;2™ week of August, 2016

*  Half Year ending on 30™ September, 2016 o 2™ week of November, 2016
* 3™ Quarter ending on 31* December, 2016 o 2™ week of February, 2017

*  Audited Yearly Results for the year ending on

31™ March, 2017 : 4% week of May, 2017
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(e} Dates of Book Closure .  September 18, 2016 to September 27, 2016
(d} Dividend Payrment Date : Mot applicable since no Dividend
has been recommended

(e} Listing on Stock Exchanges at* I HNational Stock Exchange of Inds Lid.,
Exchange Plaza. 5" Floor, Plot Mo, G, G Block,
Bandra-Kuria Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051.

The Company has paid the Listing Fees for the year 2018-17 o National Stock Exchange of India Lid.

*  The Equity Shares of the Company are also taded, under the permitied category, on BSE Lid.
[ Fommerly The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. )

{f) Stock Code

Stock Gode
Harme of the Stock Exchanges -
Physical Demat
Hational Stock Exchange of India Ltd. MIGGEO MIGGEO
ISIN Murnber for NSDL and COSL INE241 501028
{g) Market Price Daia
Mionith Cuotations at Mational Stock BSE Sensex
Exchange of India Ltd_
High Low High Low

April, 2015 oy o530 28,084 81 26.6087.54
May, 2015 0.8 o.40 28.,071.16 26 423 98
June, 2015 035 0nzs 27, 88875 28.307.07
July, 2015 0.40 025 28,578.33 27.418.39
August, 2015 o.55 0.40 28.417.58 25,288 .42

E_Eptemher. 2015 0.40 030 28.471.82 24 B33.54
October, 2015 0.50 0235 2781814 26,188.71
Movember, 2015 0.3 03 28.824.30 25,451 42
December, 2015 o.55 03 28,258.42 24 567 T3
January, 2018 0.85 045 28,187 .27 23.838.78
February, 2018 0.8 oy 25,002.32 22 484 81
March, 2018 oo 040 2547882 23.13318

(h) Registrars and Share Transfer Agents : Mis RAED Infotech Pt Lid.

1™ Floor,

7A. Beltala Foad,

¥olkata 700 026

Ph Mo : (033)2419-2641/2

E-mail 1d.: minfolec®yvahoo.com. mlinfotech Svenlpeal
(i} Share Transfer System
The Gormpany’s Equity Shares are traded in the Stock Exchanges compulsornly in Demat Mode. Share
transfers are registered within specified tme mit. Gertificate on Half Yeary basis have been issued by a
Company Secretary in practice for due compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company within the
prescribed time lEmit
(j) Distribution of sharenoldings
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The Shareholding distribution of Equity Shares as on 31 March, 2018 is given below : -

. . Percentage of
Sl No. No. of Equity Shares heid No. of Folios Mio.of Shares .
quity = Shareholdings
1. 1o =00 34233 4332108 3.18
2. =01 1o 1000 236 2831498 2107
3 1001 to 5000 o2 T458470 5.44
4. | =001 to 10000 548 4240817 3.10
5. 10001 and abowve S5E 118013481 88.23
Total - 41588 13BE7T482 10:0.00
(K} Shareholding Pattern as on 31 March, 2016
&l Category Mios. of Equity Percentage of
M. Shares held Shareholding
A Promoters’ hodding
1. Promoders :
Indian Promoters 4724581 345
Foreign Promoiers - -
2. Persons acting in concert A5E38614 33.48
Sub-Total : 0583205 J6.94
B MNon-Promoters Hodding -
3. Institutional Investors
a. Mutual Funds & LTI 3421 0,00
b Banks, Financial Instifutions, Insurance Companies
(Central/State Gowt. InstitfutionsMon-govemimental
Instibutions) 7240535 528
[ Flls Mil 0.0
Sub-Total - 7243058 528
4. Oriers -
a. Private Corporate Bodies 3B4ATE544 2811
i Indian Public 40581888 2885
[ NREIEOGES 87809 001
d. Any others (Please specify)
Trust Funds il Ml
Sub-Total - TBO7To321 STIT
GRAMD TOTAL : 138877482 100.00

{1 Dematerialisation of Equity Shares

As on 31.03.16, 91.80 % of the Company's total Shares representing 125378371 shares were held in demateriaksed
form and the balance §.40% representing 11501111 shares were held in paper form. (Total Shares are 136887 7482)

{m) Outstanding GDRS/ADRS/Warrants or any

Convertible Instruments, conversion dates
and likely mpact on Equity

(m}  Plant (Manufaeturing Units)
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1. Sharmnagar, 24-Parganas (Morth) West Bengal;, ] Temporary Suspension of work w.ef. 23™ April,
2. Baripada, District - Mayurbhanj, Odisha. 1 2015.

Address for cormespondence
Shareholders should address their comespondence 1o

Registrars and : M5 RED Infolech Pt Lid.
Share Transfer Agents 1™ Fioor,

TA, Beltala Road,

Kokata 700 028

Contact Person : Mr Ratan Mishra, Dinecior
Ph Mo. : (033 2418-2841/2
E-rnail id_: rdinfotec @ yahoo_com,  investors @ rdinfotech_in

The Shareholders may also confact Mr Rahul Banerjee, Company Secretany or Mr G G Lahin, Senior Manager | Shares)
at the Registered Office of the Company for any assistance.
Telephone Mo +8133 8828 5027 | 5024, Email - mhulbaneree & niccogroup.com.

Hon-mandatory requirements

(i

(i)

(i)

(v)

Mon-Executive Ghairman's Office
The Company meets expenses of the Non-Executive Ghaiman's office incumed in the performance of his duties.

Shareholders” Rights

The quarterty, half yeary and annual financial resutts of the Company are published in leading newspapers and arg
akso posted on the Company's website.

The complete Annual Report is sent to every shareholder of the Company.

Audit Qualifications

The Audit Cualifications/Dbsenations have been approprately dealt with.

Separate posts of Ghairman and GED

The Company has appointed separate persons 1o the post of Chaiman and Managing Director.

Reporting of Internal Auditor

The internal Auwditor reporis directly to the Audit Commitee.

The above Report has been placed before the Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on 11th
August, 2016, and the same was approved.

On behalf of the Board of Directiors

Place : Kolkata KARTICK KUMAR GHATTERJEE
Dated, the 11™ August, 2018 Managing Director & CED
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EMGLOSURE — A

Ta,
The Members of
Micco Gorpomation Lid

| hereby confim that, all te Directors and e Senior Management personnel of the Gompany have affitmed compliance
with the Code of Conduwet for the Financial Year ended on 31™ March, 2018,

Place | Kokata KARTIGHK KUMAR GHATTERJEE
Dated, the 11™ August, 2016 Mamaging Director & GED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To the Members of Nicco Corporation Limited

1. We have esamined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Micco Corporation Limibed, for
the year ended 31° March, 2016, as stipulated in -

= Clause 40 (excluding Clause 48(VIIHE) of the Listing Agreements of the Company with stock exchange).
= Clause 48 (VII)E) of the Listing Agreements of the Company with stock exchanges.

=  Regulation Z3(4) of SEBI (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2013 (SEBI
Listing Regulations) and

=  Regulations 17 to 27 [excluding regulation Z3(4} and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 48(2) and paragraphs
C. D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

2. The compliance of conditions of Gorporate Gowve mance is the mesponsibility of the Management. Cwur
examination was limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Gompany or
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of CGorporate Govermnance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

3. ¥We have examined the relevant records of the Gompany in accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing
Sfandards in India, o the extent relevant, and as per the Guidance Mole on Gerification of Corporate
Giovermnance issued by the Institute of Chanered Accountanis of India.

4. I ocur opinion and to the best of our information and according to our examination of the relevant records and
the explanations given to us, we certify that the GCompany has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Giovermnance as stipulated in Clause 48 of the Listing Agreements and regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) o (i}
of regulation 48{2) and paragraphs G, O and E of Schedule V' of the SEBI Listing Regulations for the respective

penods of applicability as specified under paragraph 1 abowve, during the year ended March 31, 2016.

3. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as o the future viability of the Company mor of the
efficiency or efiectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For G. Basu & Go.
Chartered Accountants

5. Lahiri
Parmer
Membership Mo. 051717

BASU HOUSE
3, Chowringhee Approach
Kolkata 700072,

Dated, the 11™ August, 2018
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Auditors’ Report on the Summary Financial Statements

To the Members of Nicco Corporation Limited

The accompanying summary financial statements, which comprise the summary Balance Sheet as at Mareh 31, 2018, the
summary statement of Profit & Loss and Gash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related notes, are derived from
the audited fimancial staterments of Micco Conporation Limited for the year ended March 31, 2016, Those financial
statements, and the summary financial statements, do not reflect the efiects of events that occurmed subseguent o the date
of our report on those financial statements. The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by
thie Accounting Standards referred to in section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act™) [applied in the preparation of the
audited financial statements of Nicco Corporation Limited]. Reading the summary financial statements, therefore, is not a
substitute for reading the audited financial statements of Nicco Gorporation Limited.

2

Management's Responsibility for the Summany Financial Statements.

Management is responsible for fe preparation of the audited financial staternents in accordance with Accounting

Standards referred to in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2043 (“the Acf”) and accounting principles generalhy

aceeptied in India.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the summary financial satements based on our procedures, which wene

conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing (SA) 810 “Engagements to Report on Summary Financial

Statements” issued by the Institute of Ghartered Accountants of India.

Basis of qualified opinion

a) PRetention of net deferred fax asset of Rs. 508513 lacs which incledes recognition of deferred tax against
unabisorbed 055 and unabsorbed depreciation up o 31.03:2011 of the assumptions of virbeal cerainty of future

taxabie profit to realise the asset based om evidence denved from possible approval by BIFA o its proposed
rehabili@ation package. We are unable to comment on recognition of relevant asset

b) Pending redemption of 21,583,000 no of cumulative preference shares of 100 each.

) Mon provision of interest of rs. 8,16,19.825/- against interest dues.

d) Mon provision of depreciation on components as required under fioot note *4'. Schedule-11 of Companeis Act, 2013,
Qualified Opinion

Im our opinion the summarny fimancial staterments derived from the audited financial statements of Nicco Corporation
Lirmited for the year ended March 31, 2016, except for possible effect of the matter referred 1o in 4" abowve, are fair

summary of those financial stfatements, in accordance with Accounting Standards referred to in of section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act) and accounting principles generally accepied in India.

For G. BASU & GO.
Chariered Accountants
A. Mo. — 301174E

(5. LAHIRI)

Place : Kolkata Pariner
Date - May 19, 20168 (M. Ho-0517F17)
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Abridged Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016

Fs. In Lacs
Sr . As at BAc at
Mo. |Farticulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
|  |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 plders Tunds
a P. Share 1
il |Equity 2,738.91 2.535.91
il |Preference 2,183.00 2.163.00
4] Resen'e and Us
i1l |Capital Reserves (Including Revaluation Resenve) 1,597.90 2 076.05
iy |Securties Premium Reserve 3,166.48 3,166.45
{1y IDEIE-I'IJ.I'E Fedemption Resere 300.52 20052
[ Lit ] ICE.HI‘I:H Redemplion Resene 205.00 205 00
v} |Surplus (31,916.42)] {26.620 05§
2 |share appiication mon ing allotment 74.00 174.00
3 Bon-current llabiiitles
ia) |Long-term bormowings 39.51 164.45
i b) JOther Long-term |iabEties 324.33 325.35
¢} |Longterm a7 17 146.65 |
4 Current labilities
(3]} |Short-term IIH'I'{HI‘I'DEE 1684277 o386 50
i) |Trade Payables 6,461.86 13,630.03
Cither cusment llabiities 1E.1E4ﬂ ‘I-IEEE-
- 433.08 444 03
Totalof (1) to (4) 2 57659 2267525
{1) Ible Assets (Original cost less depreciabion) 4,262 60 5.106.39
{1} |@| work In progress 8.28 8.28
[ B} |Non-cument Investments 273.73 2T T8
i ¢) |Detered tax assets (net) 5,085.13 508513
{ d 1 |LEE -tarm loans and advances 437.53 402 15
() JOther Kon Cument AESels B17.05 B25.55
{6} |current assets
{a) |inventones 1,148.08 1.240.05
(3] |Trade Recehabies 5.364.31 65234 26
[+ Cash and cash Walents EIET? 2 10
d Short-term loans and 3dvances ??E_E-I 1&?‘9
{ &) jCther Camrent ASsEts 1107 19777
Totalof (6) to () 20 676,59 22 67525

Mofe : Complete Balance sheetsiatement of Profit and loss, other statements and nodes therein prepared as per the requirements of Schedule 11 o
the Companies Act 2013 ane avallabie af the Company's webshe at Inkowwwniccogroug. com

As par gur attached Report of sven date

On behalf of the Board of Direciors

Director & Chairman Audil Commitbes

Managing Diractor & CED

ForG.BASL & CO.
Chartersd Accaountanis MARDTTAM DAS
HARTICHK KUMAR CHATTERJIEE
LIDAYAN RAY Wiea Chairman
RAJVE AL Chalrmian
SIBEAJ DATTA Chiaf Financial OMMfcar

Kolkata, the 19 th Day of May, 2018 RAHUL BANERJEE

Co, Secratary



Abridged Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 2016

RE. In Lacs
3.Mo. | Particulars Jist March 2016 31st March 2015
|__lincome
REVENUE fum operations 573.22 10,323.18
Legs : Exclse duty 13 85 718.85
Met Revenue from Operations 585,37 8,604.33
N |odher Income 446,52 717.00
Il |Total Income | K ) 1,005,599 10,321,353
v__|Expenditure
{a) |Costof matenals consumed 331.46 4,147.23
{b ) |Purchase of siock-in-frade 27.15 1,414.30
{£) | Changes In Inveniores of finished goods, work-in-progress and
sinck-In-trade. 53.03 922 31
{d) |Employees benefts expense 594 63 2,460.61
{ 8] |Finance costs 3,894 37 4,347 51
{7} |Depreciation and amoriisation expense 36562 414.93
{g) |Dther expensas 554 86 2,211.D
Total Expenditure (a o _g) 5.851.12 15,917.85
vV |Profit before exceptional and extraordinary ltems and tax
(8-¥) e (5,595 621
vl |Exceptional tems 242,21
Vil |Profit before extraordinary llems and tax (V- V1) {5.#?311 {8,
VIl |Extraordinary Hems (Sale of project division) 1
iX__|Profit / (loss) before tax ( Vil - VIll ) (5,087 341 4
¥ |1.Tax expense
2 Defemad tax
X1 Profit / (loss ) after tax for the year from continuing operations
(IX -X) {5,087.34)f {4.845.62]
X1l |Profit/ (I0s6) from MiSContnued operations
¥ [Tax expense of discontinued operations
Profit / (I05E) from Miscontnued operations (AFTER TAX) (X Xl
X 0,00
Xv_|Profit/ (loss) for the year | Xl + XV ) (5,087.34 {4,645.62)
XvI |Earnings per equity share:
{a) Basls {3.80 361
(b)) Dituted {3.80 {4.45)

A5 par our altached Reporl of evan dale
For G BASU & CO.

On behall of 1he Board of Directors

Chartered Accountanis MARGTTARM DAS Diirgector & Chairman Audit Commitbes
HARTICK KUMAR CHATTERJEE banaging Director & CED
LIDaYAaM AT Wice Chairrman
RAIVE EALIL Chairman
SIBAJI DATTS Chief Financial Crfficar
Kolkata, the 19th Day of May 2016 FRAHUL BANERJEE o, Secratary
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ﬁ NICCO CORPORATION LINMTITED

ABRRIDGED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2016

(Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
3.03.2018 032015
[B.801.41] {1,058 78]
i, ] 11048
BAT288 T4
(.28 (178.85)
T8 003
588 TOL18
A5 per our atiached Report of aven dais O behalf of the Board of Direciors
ForG.BASL & SO,
Charterad Accountants MAROTTAM DAS Diirector & Chairman Audil Commilbes
HARTICK KUMAR CHATTERJIEE bManaging Director & CED
UDAYAN RaY Wica Chairman
RAJVE FALIL Chglrman
SIEAJ DATTA Chiaf Financial Offcar
Kolkata, the 19th Day of May, 2018 RAHUL BANERJIEE Co, Sacratary



NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED ﬁ

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TD ACCOUNTS

A

COMPANY INFORMATION

Mictco Corporation Limitd (“the Company”) is a domestic public limited company and is ksted on the Mational Stock
Exchange (MSE).The company has two divisions, cable and project. cable being it's core area of opertion. The
Company enjoys rich heritage among cabe manufacturers of mis subcontinent and widely Known among consWners
across the length and breath of the country. Motwithstanding stagnant phase over last few years, the company aspires
to re establish itsedf in terms of its old vigour in days ahead.

ACONIRCANT ACCOUNTING POLICICS

Basis of preparation of Ascounts

The Accounts of the company have beenm prepared in accordance with the histoncal cost conwention (except
specifically excluded treatment) under accrual basis of accounting as per Indian GAAP_Accounts and disclosures

thereon comply with the Accounting Standards referred to under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, other
promouncement of IZAI, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and guidelines issued by SEEI as applicable.

Indian GAAP enjoins managerment to make estimates and assumptSons that afiect reported amount of assets,
liakilites, revenue, expenses and contingent liabilities peraining to years , the financial statement relate to. Actual result
could differ from suwch estimates. Any revision in accounting estimates s recognized prospectively from cument year
and material revision , including its impact on financial statement,is reported in notes o accounts in the year of
inconporation of revision.

All assets and liabilties have been classified as cument or non-cument as per the company’s normal operating cycke
and other enteria set out in Aevised Schedule 1| of Companies Act 2013,

(&) (i} FIXED ASSETS:(Tangible)

ij Fized Assets (except free hold Land) are valeed at cost (net of GENVAT) less depreciationiamortization and
irmpairment loss, if any, except for those revalued which are presented in terms of revalued figures — net of
depreciation thereon and mpainment loss if any. Land is valued at cost which includes expense on account of
development.

i) Assets acquired under Hire Purchase are shown under fived assets and are depreciated at the rate specified
under schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013.

ii) Cost ncludes purchase price, finance charges in case of major expansion or modemisation and other
aftributable expenses for bringing the Assets to their working condition for the intended use, duly certified by
the engineers of the concemed departmenits.

{ii) FIXED ASSETS:(Intangible)

Intangibée fixed assets ie; software is camied at actual cost of acquision including cost incitental thereon — met
of amortisation.

(b} DEPRECIATION:

1. Depreciation is considered on straight line method in terms of ife span of different assets specified under
schedule |l of Companies Act, 2013,

2. Depreciation on additions/deletion during e year is charged on pro rata basis fromiupin the date of such
additionideletion_

3. Inrespect of revalued depreciable assets, the differential depreciation on the amounts added on revaksation is
set off against Revaluation Resene foming part of Capital Reserve.

4. Depreciation on increase in valve of assets ansing out of vanations in the exchange mtes, i changed
prospectively over the remaining life of the assets.

Leasehold land is amortised over the peniod of lease.

8. Intangibie fixed assets ie; software is amortised over a period of S5 years on straight line basis since the date
of bringing the same in use.

(e} IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS

Exigency of prowisions, if any. for impaimment loss has been assessed in the context of cash generating units
(GGU) in due cognizance of indications thereof based on externalinternal sources of information.
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HICCO CORPORATION LIMITED

Impairment loss is provided against shaort fall of recoverable value of CGGUs vis- a- vis writien down value of
cormesponding fixed assets. Recoverable value is the higher of value in use and net selling price of the fised assets
redevant io a GGU.

IMMENTORIES

=)

All iterns of inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisabie value except for scrap which is considered at
estimated net realisable value.

Ciost includes all costs of purchase, corversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

The basis of determining cost for difierent categories of inventories:

a) Stores, Raw materals and Packing Maiernals — Weighted average basis.

b} Work in Progress and Finished goods- Matenal cost and appropriate share of production overhesd.
) Purchased goods — purchase price.

INVESTMENTS: :

Long term investments are stated at cost less provision, i any. against permanent diminution in carrying cost of
investment. Gurment investrments are camed at lower of cost and Met Asset Value/market price.

BEVENUE RECOGNITIOMN

(g

(m)

1) Sales and services are accounted for when the sale of goods or services are completed on accrual  basis.
Sakes is net of sales fax / VAT but gross of excise duty.

2) Al iems of income and expenses ane recognized on accrual basis unless stated othenwise.
3) Export benefits are accounted for on the basis of realization.
RECOGHNITION OF PROFT ON LONG TERM CONTRACTS:

Contract revenue and Confract costs are recognized as revenue and expenses respectively by referance to the
stage of completion of confract activity up to the date of balance sheet when construction contract stage can be
estimated reliably. Expected loss on construciion contract, based on possibility of total cost of construction
exceeds contract revenue, is recognized as an expense. Stage of completion is amved at on the basis of agreed
billing schedule vis - a - vis iofal contract value_

TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGHN CURRENCIES:

Foreign cumency assets and outside liabilities (other than fized assets and those covered by forsard contracts) as
on the Balance Sheet date are converted at the year end exchange rafes and loss OF gain arising thereon, is
adpested in the camying amount of fixed asseis or charged to Profit & Loss Account, as the case may be.

Transactions in foreign currencies other than those covered by forward confracts, are recorded at the rate
prevailing on the date of transaction. Impact of exchange fluctuation between the date of the transaction and that
of payment is accounted for separately as exchange gain or loss.

BETIRE MENT BEMEFITS:

(i} Defined Contribution Plan —

Provident Fund, Employees Pension and Employees State Insurance are provided on accrual basis. The
accrued amount being deposited to the respeciive TrestAuthority.

(i) Defined Benefit Plan —

Gratuity , Leave salany and Superannuation benefit form part of defined benefit plan schemes existing in the
COMpany.

The above benefits have been accounted for on the basis of actunal computation under unit projecied cost
method in terms of AS — 15 mandated by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MGA) at year end. Interim labilities ane
proviged for in this regard on estimaied basis.

(i} Short tern benefit Plan —
Benefits payable within a year has been accounted for on accnual basis in terms of non discounted value.
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NICCD CORPORATION LIMITED ﬁ

HOVERMNMENT GRANTS:

Revenue grants are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. Capital grants are credited to Capital Resenses.
{k} RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES:

Research and Development Expenditure is charged to profit and loss account in the year of incurmence.
IPPNTINGENT LIABILITIES

where there is reliably estimable amount of present obligation that warmant 1o be settied as a result of past event
with possible outfiow of resources emiodying economic benefit, provision is recognised in account therefore.

Ofhervise no provision is made against contingent Babilities which are disciosed in notes to accounts.
(m) MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE:
Prefiminary expenses are written off in the year in which ey are incumed.

Share issue expenses and payment made towards Volntary Retirement Scheme are written off owver a peniod of
&0 months in equal installments.

TREATION:

Income Tax is provided as per provisions of Income Tax Act, 1861, Defermed tax is recognized only at year end
subject to consideration of prudence on timing difference being the difference between the taxable income and
accounting income that onginate inone year and capable of reversal in one or more subsequent penodipenods.

(0} INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE

Income, Expenses & stake in veniure the company has underiaken with a third party have been accounted forin
temms of AS — 27 mandated by MGCA.

GENERAL:

nems of income, expenses, assets and liabilities not being specifically referred i herein are accounted for
consistently in terms of generally accepted accounting practices in due adherence of Accounting Standands
mandated under act and in it's absence those issued under International Accounting Standands.
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ﬁ NICOD CORPORATION LIMITED

Figures have been stated in Rs. In Lacs

1:Revenue from operations:

Rs. In Lacs
Sl No. | Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31™ ended 31"
March 2016 March 2015
I Sale OFf Products (Cables, conduciors & wires) 161.11 B619.84
In. Sale Of Sarvices (ECD,IRR & Enginearing 410.01 1516.55
sorvicas)
. Other El-parallng Revenues :éal& of inmp} 210 186.69
Total 573.22 10,323.18
2:Cash and Cash equivalents: (Refer Schedule 15 to Accounts)
Rs. In Lacs
5L No. | Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31* ended 31"
March 2016 March 2015
(a) Balancas with banks 2593498 2396.09
(b} | Cheques / drafis in hand
(€} | Cashinhand 0.81 1.68
Total 2594.59 2397.77

3: Refer Note 7 (a) In schedule 21 to accounts contingent liabllities not provided for:

(a)Claims not acknowledged as debt R2.5117.19 (Rs. 4817.62)

{b ) Guarantes fumished Rs.3040.37 (Rs. 11,809.89)
{c) Arrear dividend on cumulative preference share Rs.1313.60 (Rs. 1204.45)

4: Refer Note 7 (b) In schedule 21 to accounts

Contingent labilities provided for in trms of AS 29

a) Pariculars Qpaning  Provisions made Provisions withdrawn Closing Provision Forum whwra the
Provision during the year during the yvear dispute is pending
Provision for 10.00 Mil Mil 10.00 Kerala High Court

doubiiull advance

&: Refer Note 9 In schedule 21 to accounts

Dafarred Tax:

a) Recognition of deferred tax asset uplo 31.03.2011 on un absorbed loss & depreciation is alirbuted io
management affirmation of virtual cerainty of future profit evidenced by viability of the rehabilitation scheme
under progress as per submission to BIFR directives. However no further addition fo deferred tax assef,
whatever may be the coniributory of it, has been recognized as a measure of abundant prudence after relevant
date,
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NICCO CORPORATION LIMITELD ﬁ

b) Deferred tax asset (net) accrued fill date vis-&-vis provision retained in accounts,

(Rs in Lacs)
As al 31% March  As at 31° March  Provisional retained in tarms
2016 2015 of position as on
31032011

&, Defarred Tax Assets
Loss & Unabsorbed depreciation 10,124.45 8552 .46 625093
Employes related dues 165.39 182.52 199.88
Provision for Doubtfull Debt 25.82 2582 il
Sub Total [A) 10,315.66 760,80 645081
B. Delerred tax liability (Depreciation) 235,08 —203.08 265,58

Met Deferred Tax Asset accrued fill date 10,079 58 BE5T 72 508513
C. Net deferred tax actually accounied for 50B85.13 E0B5.13 50B85.13
D. Deferred Tax liability/(assel) recognised for the
year | period Mil Mil (574.11)

Note 6: Refer Note 10 In schedule 21 to accounts

(a) parties in micre and small category under MSMED Act, 2006, have beean identified on the basis of disclosure made

by respective paries in their inveices / challans.

b) Pariculars of due o relevant credilors are givan hareundar

Parliculars

As on 31.03.2018

As on 31.03.2015

1 Pringipal
The Principal amount and tha interast
due hereon (lo be shown separatlaly)
remaining unpaid to any suppliars

ag al the end of each accounting year 1235

Intarmsd

BE.10

Tedal

198.45

Prinzlpal

112.35

Intarast

BE.10

Taotal

198.45

2 | Amount of intarest paid by the Buyer In
terma of Sec 16 of MSMED Act
2006, along with tha payment msde 1o
the supplier beyond the appointad day
during each Accounbing year,

MNA

3 | The amound of Inferest due and payable
for the peried of delay in making
payment bul withaut adding the Interast
undar MSMED Act 2006

28.10

4 | The amount of Interest acorued and
remaining wnpaid at the end of each
Agogunling year

115.18

22753

112.20

224.55

5 | The amaunt of further interast remalning
dus and payabla evan in the succeading
years, untd such date when the nierzet
dues as above ame aclually paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expen-
diture under section 23 of the MSMED
Act, 2008,

MIL

MIL

MIL

MIL

7. Considering the aclivitias of Engineering division falling short of 10% banchmark stipulated under AS-17 with mare
than 30% of activities confined to cable division, submizssion of segment report has been done away with from this

quarter.
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ﬁ MWICCD CORPORATION LIMITED

8: Refer Mote 12 in scheduls 21 to accounis

Information on Related parties pursuant to AS 18 lssued by
Fadatnd Party disclosures:

&)

Related Parties where control exists:

bl

Other Related parties in transaction

iy

Assoclates

Mioso Veniuras Lid,

Micco Financisl Sendcas Lid.

Moo Parks & Resors Lid,

Nicco Engineening Services Lid,

Nieta Cables Lirmitad

NE Cables Limited

Key Management Personnal (KMP)

Mr. Kartick Kumar Chatterjes (From 01.10.2015)

Managing Director & CEOQ

MIr. Prasania Par

Chinl Financial OMcer

r. Indrand Mira (Upte 30.11.2015)

Company Secretary

K. Swapan Kumar Mukheree (Uplo EIIZI.H'S.ED‘IET]

Managing Director

—

Others

WS, Associabed Indusinal Development Co, Pyl Lid,

Privale Company wheare
director is memberidirector

Hercules Trading Corporation Pyt Lid.

Private Comgany whara
dirsctor i mambandirecior

Tha Following transactions wara carriad out with related parties in the ordinary course of businass.

Subssdiary , Joint Ventwre & Asscclates and Key Management personnel
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Re. in Lacs
Associates Assoclates  Others KMP KNP
[Gignificant  Significant
Influence Influence
3036 31.08.15 30316 30315
Purchase of goods (NESL) Rs.0.37 As.0.47 - =
Remuneration FRis.36.20 As. 45.18
For rendering of services - -
HESL - Rs. 38.76 As. &1.16
NVL - Aa. 1.24 Re. 357
For recelving of services —
NBL
Balance at the end of the 310316 31.03.15 N.03.16 31.03.15
Period
Payables — NESL Rs. 62.57 Fa.91.84 . -
Recelvables- NVL Rs. Nil As.0.63
Comporale Guaranies = NESL Rs.297.00 Rs.297.00
Investmants (Share Capital)
NESL Rs.14.67 As 1467
Micco Parks & Fesorls Lid. Fs120.60 Fs.120.50
Nicco Vanturas Lid, Rs.81.96 Fs.91.96
Micco Financial Services Lid. Fis.25.594 FRs.25.94
Nieen Financial Servicas - As. 90.50
Limited {in Drebentures)
Gueranteas fumishad against
compam’s barrawing:
Mizts Financlal Semvices FRe31250.00  Fs.31250,00
Limited
Associated Industrial Rs31250.00  Rs.31250.00
Crewelopment Co. Pyi. Ltd.
Hercules Trading Corparation Re.31250.00 Re.31250.00

Pt L,




ﬁ WICCO CORPORATION LIMITED

9 ; Refer Note 13 in Schedule 21 to accounts,

Falicwing adjusrranis ralaling lo ampicpss Banalita hive ean made in Tese scoounts in keaping
with Aceunbing Standasd 15 (Revised) issued By e Inaliule ol Ghadtaned Actouniants

a) under dafned contrituSon pians in lems of folosing break up Fas Beer recognised during T yuar
Dutals giver bakow
Far Iha yuar Far tha yaar
e i ‘e on
3103 3HE kI Riche b
Particulars 2 R&. Lakhs R, Lakhs
Proswddant Fund 18,83 arar
Employpesss Persicn Schama 4,37 B0,04
Employsta Etahs Insrancn 0.70 2.63
Tokal 26,040 A1EL.10
Bl Particulas in mepac of poal ralireysnl banaSl unde® defined berwlil plans !
Deecription Graluty Leseren Salary Supsrannusion
Rueconciistion of Oponing far valee of plarned
assats and operng value of defined benoft {(Funded) (Mo Fundesd) {Funded]
obigation (s, Lakhs) (Fis. Lakhs) (Fs. Lakhs|
& PRacencliation of apening and cloalng balence of chiligaticn
a  Oibligaton as el 14,15 1,183,534 163,64 8581
k. Past Sandes Coal - — —_
&, Curran] Sardce Cosl 34,30 050 387
d. Inlaras] Sl 7815 12.60 508
o Acuaral (ganyloss [BEF {83 .50 118,17
. Bonois paid 1348 79 - -
g- Omilligaton as at 31.02.16 §i6.18 103.24 B5.548
B. Ghange in Plan Asses [Reconcillision of cpening & closing balances]
2. Fair Valos of plam assals as ol 1.4.95 258.30 _ 28,76
b. Expacisd retum oo plan assaln BA.G6 wa 204
0.  Achmriol gainkes] (38,45 - E‘B-l-]
d. ContibuSons by the employor - -
w  Bansbis paid {8, TE) — —
I Fair Vake of plan assets se st 31.03.16 34571 - 8.7
G, Feconciliation of fair valus of plan assets and present valwe of definesd bonefit obligations
g Preserd value ol obligation a3 al 310518 g6 18 1024 §5.54
k. Fair Vakes of plar asseis a8 on 310316 34,71 - {96, TE)
&, Ao fecognized in the Balancs seal iTeAT 103,24 42,30
0. Expanass recognlzed In the peded
. Curen Sareice cosl 3430 150 1ET
B Pagl sandos cosl - - —_
&, Iilarsl cosl 78,15 12.80 508
4. Expacied miam of plan aasels gainfloss) &858 — 2,04
& Acurial {gainy loss 29,64 {8350 {16.15]
L Expansss racogrized |n e panod {a+b-+o-d+a) 7143 {60 .45 §10.37)
Hagn
B gt
F. Invwasbenan Dabails of Plan Adsabs
g G0 Becurilisa —
b Publc Secdor uril Bonds —
o,  Siole ! Ceniral Guaraniead S urnites —
d.  RAeimitursement right from insuranos companies 58,85
g.  Spociol Deposit Schomes. =
i e {inchoding berk balances) 1.18
G Asaumgtices
8, Dissound rade (per anmam] (%) B.75
k. Esimated rate of relurm on plas assals (pef annum) (%) .75
g, Irfaton Rabe (%) &.00
d. Famaising Werikdng Life {n Years) 12.00
[ Mathod Lisod Frojacid Uit Cradi Msthod
L Mortal by teclor Aig o LALLM [Z2006-2008) UEmalo
g  Stofl Tumover 0 jper § 1000 per annum
h.  Supor annoaation Age A&t 60 Yoo
Bagig of dilarmiratian of Reham an long s investmest in gevemmen Bond,
reapeciad date of Rsbym
Miodi :

4 Conlribiton aganst supar anmuiton Led has Bean miks sgainl acooet with UG in comprabansive conse of 4 comparies i 4 Mices Corporation Limiad,
Micea Vartures Lid, Niten Parks and Rasorts Ld, and Mo Engnaricg Sarvices L. Pl i achusesl somputaien sompulaton his bean sppropeatad
Inaoue tae 1 reapect o paymant made 1o beneSclaries fom lnds meant or oher enfties by way of adhintog agalat actiarel gakvioss and achl

nafil pa
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10: Refer Note 14 In schedule 21 to accounts

Information pursuant to As 28,
Cable Divisions at Baripada, Shyamnagar and Project Division constitute three cash generating units (CGL).
Common fixed assels have been apportioned among CGU's in the ratio of written down value of fixed assets
held by respective unils.
Since recoverable value of each CGLU under net selling price method prima facie proves higher than carrying
cost of relevant CGUS" no provision is called for against impairment loss thereon.

11: Refer Note 15 in schedule 21 to accounts
Information pursuant o AS 7 (relates to confracts enterad into since 01042003 :

(a) Conitract revenue recognized as revenue gross of service lax Rs.2.88 Lac (Rs.1183.38Lacs)
(k) Retention amount (forming part of debtors) Rs.268.14Lacs (Rs. Rs.268.14 Lacs)

(c) Due from customers on account of contract work Rs.3051.80 Lac (Rs. Rs.3586.60Lac),

(d) Aggregate of cost incurred on construction contract Rs. 11.13 Lac (As.1142.43 Lac).

(e} Aggregate of profit (Loss) recognized against construction coniract (Rs.8.25 Lac) (Rs.50.56 Lac) on the
basis of direct cost only.

(i The amount of advances received Rs.Nil lacs (nil)
12: Refer Note 4 in schedule 1 to accounts and notes raferred in schedule 21 to accounts

(a) Preference Share Capital relates to 21,83,000 number of

5% cumulative praference sharas of Rs.100/- sach fully paid up, 1846000
number of which is convertible at the option of share holders.

(b} Period of redemption of Preference Shares;

Financial Convertible at the Others (No.) Total
Years aption of mamber
iNos.) {Nos.)
2009 - 10 - 110000 110,000
2010 - 11 - 110000 110,000
2011 -12 615300 117000 732,300
202 -13 615300 - 615,300
2013 -14 615400 = 615,400
1,846,000 237,000 2,183,000

{ &) Conversion right has not bean excersied by concarned sharshalders till date.
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13: Refer Note 16 in schedule 21 to accounts

{a) Eaming Per Sharelafter consideration of extra ordinary items)

YEAR YEAR
NCL EMDED ENDED
15T MARCH 16 ST MARCH 15
Earning Per Share (Basic )
Loss after Tax (5087.34) (4645.62)
Lass:
Preference Dividend 5% (Rs. Lacs) 108.15 10815
A. Amount used as numaralors in calculating
basic & diluted eaming per share. [5156.49) (4754.77)
Welghted average no. of Equity Share - Basle 136,877,482 131,877,482
Weighted average no. of Equity Share - Diluted 136,877,482 131,877,482
E. Earning Per Share (Basic) {3.80) (3.617)
F. Earning Per Share (Diluted) (3.80) {3.61)
(b} Eaming Per Share (without consideration of axtra ordinary itams)
YEAR YEAR
MNCL EMDED ENDED
35T MARCH 16 ST MARCH 15
Earning Per Share (Basic )
Loss after Tax (5087.34) (4645.62)
Less:
Preference Dividend 5% (Rs. Lacs) 108.15 108,15
Extra Ordinary [tems 951.00
Impact of changes in accounting
astimation 178.00
A. Amount used as numarators in calculating
basic & diluted earning per share. (5196.49) (5883.77)
Weighted average no. of Equity Share - Basic 136,877,482 131,877,482
Welghted average no. of Equity Share - Diluted 136,877,482 131,877,482
E. Earning Per Share (Basic) {3.80) {4.48)
F. Earning Per Share (Diluted) (3.80) (4.48)

38




NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED ﬁ

Pending approval from appropriate authority of the paid up value of shares poised for allotment to Micco Restructuring
Emplovesas Trust Fund, Rs.74 lac (previous year As.174 lac) received from the trust on account of share application
has not been reckoned by determination of EPS — basic as well as diluted.

14: Refer Note 17 in schedule 21 to accounts

"Asset Sale Committee” constitfuted by The Board for Industrial & Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) in terms of order of
AAIFR,zold Project Division and the sake proceed including interest accrued thereon amounting to Rs.1053.76 lacs
has been kept in interest bearing "No Lien” accownt mamntained with Allahabad Bank as per BIFR directive dated
09.10.2013. Sale of Baripada Division is yet to materialise.

Relevant Mo Lien Account described herein as escrow accounl amounts to RAs.2589.88 lacs which includes, apar
from proceeds of Sale of Project Division and interest accrued thereon , preceeds of sale of investmenis in Micoo Bio
Tech Limited and sale of cars In terms of permission from authorities being kept intact pending direction to the effect
of usage of said fund from the authorities,

15: Refer MNote 18 In schedule 21 to accounts

Due to suspension of work in units, depraciation on components of fixed assets could nol be separalely ascertained
based on technical evaluation as required under footnote "4’ of schedule Il of Companies Act 2013,

16: Refer Foot Mote 1 & 2 in schedule 10 to accounts

C.Y. P.Y.
1 (a} Aggregate amount of Quoted Investment (net of provision) As. 145.18 145,19
(b) Aggregate markel value of Quoted Investment : As. 3501.89 1,834.38
icl Aggregate amount of Unguoted Inmvestment : Hs. 134.58 134.50
_2  Mat of provisions in carrying amount of non current Investment As. TE7.56 78756
Ag per our attached report of even date
FOR G.BASU & CO. On behalt of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
HAROTTAM DAS Diractor & Chairman-Audit Commitles
UDAYAN RAY Vice Chalman
KARTICK KUMAR CHATTERJEE  Managing Director
RAJIVE KALIL Chairman
SIBAJI DATTA Chief Financial Cxficar
RAHUL BANERJEE Co, Secretary

Kolkata, The 18th day of May, 2016
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Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Members of Nicco Corporation Limited

The accompanying consolidated financial statements, which compeiss the consolidated Balance Shest as at March 31,
216, the consolidated statemant of Profit & Loss and consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and
related notes, are derived from the audited financial sialements of Nicco Corporation Limited for the year ended March
31, 2016, These financlal staternents, and the consolidated financlal statements, do net reflect the effects of events that
ocourred subsequent 1o the date of our report on those linancial statements, The consolidated financial slalements do nol
contain all the dsclesures requined by the Accounting Standards referred 1o in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ["the
Act’) [applied in the preparation of the audited financial statements of Micco Corporatien Limited]. Reading the consalldated
financlal statements, therefors, |8 not a subsiitute for reading the audited financial statements of Nicoo Corporation Limited,

2,

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statemeants.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the audited consolidaled financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Standards referred lo in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 "the Act”) and accounting principles

generally accepled in India.

Auditor's Responsibility

O responsibility is fo express an opinion on the consclidated financial statements based on our proceduraes, which
wane conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing (5A) 810 “Engagements to Report on Consolidated Financial
Statements” isswed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Basis of qualified opinion

a) Retention of net deferred tax asset of Rs. 5085.13 lacs which includes recognition of deferred tax against
unabsorbed loss and unabsorbed depraciation up to 31.03.2011 of the assumptions of virtual cerainty of fulure
taxable profit to realise the asset based om evidence derived from possible approval by BIFR o s proposed
rehabilitation package. We are unable to comment on recognition of relevant asset.

b) Pending redemption of 21,83 000 no of cumulative preference shares of 100 each,

c) Mon provision of interest of rs. B, 16,19,825/- againat interest dues,

d) Mon provision of depraciation on compansants as reguired under foot note '4', Schedule-1l of Companeis Act, 2013,
Qualified Opinion

I our opinlon the consoldated financkal statements derved from the audited consolidated fimancial statements of Nicoo
Corporation Limited for the vear ended Marnch 31, 2016, except for possible eflect of the matter refermed to in ‘4" above,
are falr consolidated of those financlal statements, In accordance with Accounting Standards referred to In of sectien
133 of the Companles Act, 2013 ["the Act) and accounting principles generally accepled in India,

For G. BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
R. Mo, — 301174E

(5. LAHIRI)

Flace : Kolkata Pariner
Date : May 19, 2016 (M. Mo.-051717)
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ﬁ MICCO CORPOPATION LINMITED AND ITS ASSODCTATES

Abridged Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 318t March 2016

Rs. Im Lacs
K3 Particulars As at As at
Mo. 31=t March 2016 31st March 2015
| JEGQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
1 Tunds
{a) |Paki-up Share Capital
I} |Equity 2 736.91 263891

i} ||=rererenue 2,183.00 2 183.00
1] Resansss and surplus
i} |::.apr|ai Reserves (Incuding Revaluation Reserve) 1,597.90 2.076.06

{ll} |securties Premium Reserve 3,166.43 3,165.48
iy Joebenture on Reserve 300.52 300.52
i) |Capital Regemption Resenve 205.00 205.00
iv} |Swplus {30,544.93]] (25, 696.36)]
{2) |Share application money pending allotment 74.00 17400
{3} |Non-current Habllities
{a) |Longterm bomowings 35.51 16448
{ b} |other Long-term liabiities 324 33 32535
{ ¢} |Longterm provisions a7 17 146.65
{4} |Current ilabiities
a ) |short-term bormowt 16,542 77 9, 386.50
{B) Payables £.461.86 12.630.03
Other curment Eabilties 18,123.48 14,663.23 |
435.08 444 03
alof (1])to (4) 2134803 A0
{5) |Mon-current assets
{a) |Fixed Assets
(1] |Tangmie Assets (Onginal cost less depreciation) 4,262 60 106.39
{11} JCapital work in progress Bag 828
{ b ) |Mon-current investments 1,551.22 1,412.50
(c) |DE|'ETE|:II31:$EEE|E] 5,085.13 5,085.13
{d) |Long -term loans and aovances 437.58 432 15
{2} |other Mon Cument Assets §17.05 £25.55
{6 [Current assets
{a} linwentories 1,145.08 1.240.05
{b) [Trace Recenables 5,364 31 6,234 26
¢} lCcash and cash equivalents 2535.77 2,342 10
{d) |Short-term ans and acvances 776.94 1,063.79
() |Other Cumrent Assets 1M1.07 197 77
Totalof [6) to (8] 21,948 03 23,807 97

Mote : Compiete Balance sheet statement of Profit and loss, oiher statements and notes thereto prepaned as per the requirements of Schedule 11l o
the Companies Act2013 are avalable at the Company's websita 3t KWW NICCogITUp. Com

45 per our attached Report of sven daie On behalf of the Board of Direciors
ForG.BASL & CO.
Chartersd Accaountanis MARDTTAM DAS Diirector & Chairman Audil Commilbes
HARTICHK KUMAR CHATTERJIEE Managing Diractor & CED
LIDAYAN RAY Wiea Chairman
RAJVE AL Chalrmian
SIBEAJ DATTA Chiaf Financial OMMfcar
Kolkata, tha 19 th Day of May 201 RAHUL BAMERJEE Co, Secratary
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Abridged Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 2016

_ Rs. In Lacs
5.Mo. |Particulars J1st March 2018 315t March 2015
I _Jlincome
Rewvenue from operations 573.22 10,323.13
Less : Excise duly 13.85 T1B.B5
Net Revenue from Operations 55037 0.604.33
Il |O#er income 448 82 T17.00
Il |Total Income {1} 1,005.00 10,321.33
IV _|Expenditure
{a) JCostof materials corsumead 33146 4.147.23
(b} JPurchase of sipck-in-irade Zr 15 141430
ic) | Changes in imveniories of finished goods, work-in-progress and
stock-in-irade. 53.03 02231
{d) JEmployees benefils expensa E.83 2.480.61
{ 2] [Finance cosis 3,804.37 4,347 51
{(f) JDepreciation and amartisation axpense 365,82 41483
(g} JOtherexpenses 54 B8 2.211.06
Total diture (a to gl §.851.12 15,817.85
v exceptional and extraordinary items and tax
(I -) (4,845.13 {5,508,
W1 |Exceptional items Iuluill 521
VIl |Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V- V1) 5,087 24| {5,508,
Vil |Extraordinary items (Sale of project division) {B51.00
X 055 & tax -vill) (5.087.34)] H.Hg
X [1.lax expense
[} Diefemed fax
X ﬁI{Im:]n‘lwm for the year from continuing operations 50874 048
Xl M(Iuﬁsjm discontinued operabons uﬂ
X Tax expense of dscontnued ocperations
¥y |Profit/ {less) from discontinued operations  (AFTER TAX) (XII- X1l
XV _|Profit ] (loss) for the year [ X+ XV ) [5.087.34 [4.545.
_I'."I Shiare of Proitt of Associabes 1 H-._ll ﬂ
IVl JCconsolidated Profit & Loss {4,048 B2 {4.510.12
] EITHI'IIF per l!:ll.l|tr share:
{a) Basic (3.7 {350
(b] Diluted (3.7 .08

A5 par our altached Reporl of evan dale

On behall of 1he Board of Directors

Diirgector & Chairman Audit Commitbes

Managing Diractor & CEO

For G BASL & CO,
Chartered Accountanis MARGTTARM DAS
HARTICK KUMAR CHATTERJEE
LIDaYAaM AT Wice Chairrman
RAIVE EALIL Chairman
SIBAJI DATTS Chief Financial Crfficar
Kolkata, the 19th Day of May 2016 FRAHUL BANERJEE o, Secratary
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ABRRIDGED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2016

(A5 i Laies)
| PARTICLLARS Year Emded Year Ended
310316 310335
]
|

1554 THL48
kel oA
WET CHAMGES IN CAGH | CASH EQUNALENTS [A+EHC) [ ] ES
CASH & CASH EGLINALENTS - OPEMNING BALANCE TS 230003
CASH & CASH EQLINALENTS - CLOSMNG BALANCE 550 L&

A5 per our atiached Report of aven dais

Far G.BASL & GO,
Chartered Accountanis MNARDTTAM DAS
HARTICK KUMAR CHATTERIEE
LICWAYAMN RUAY
FRAJVE KALL
SIEAJI DATTA
Holkata, the 19th Day of May 2018 RAHUL BAMERJEE

O behalf of the Board of Direciors

Diirector & Chairman Audil Commilbes
bManaging Director & CED
Wica Chairman
Chglrman

Chiaf Financial Offcar
Co, SEscrotary



NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS ASSOCIATES ﬁ

CONSOLIDATED SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

A, COMPANY INFORMATION
Micco Corporation Limitd ("the Company”) is @ domestic public limited company and is Ested on the Mational Siock
Exchange (MSE).The company hes two divisions, cable and project, cable being it's core area of operation. The
Company enjoys rich heritage among cable manufacturera of this subcontinent and widely known among consumers
across the length and breath of the country. Motwithstanding stagnant phase over last few yeara, the company aspires
to re establish itsedf in tarms of its old vigour in days ahead.

B, SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of Accounts

The Accounts of the company have been prepared in accordance with the histoncal cost convendion (except
specifically excluded treatment) under accrual basis of accounbing as per Indian GAAP.Accounts and disclosures
thereon comply with the Accounting Slandards referred fo under seclion 133 of Companies Acl, 2013, olher
pronouncement of ICAL, provisions of the Companias Ac1,2013 and guidelines issusd by SEBI as applicabla,

Indian GAAP enjoing management to make eslimales and assumptions thal affect reporied amount of assels,
liabilies, rmvenue, axpenses and contngant liabilities paraining to wears , tha linancial statemaent relale to, Acual result
could dfler from such estimates. Any revision in accounting estimates & recognized prospectivaly from cumant year
and materal revision , including its impact on financial stalementis reported in notes to accounls in the year of
incomporalion of revision,

All asgols and labiSties have boon classilied as currenl or non-currend as paer the company's normal operaling cycle
and sthar criteria sel out in Rovized Scheduls Il of Companias Acl,2013.

{a) (I} FIXED ASSETS:(Tangible)

i) Fixed Assels (excepl free hold Land) are valued at cost (nel of GENVAT) less depreciation/amorization and
impairmant loss, if any, excepl for thoss revalued which are prasented in terms of revalued figures - nat of
depreciation therson and impairment loss if any. Land is valued at cost which includes expense on account of
davelopment.

il Assats acquirsd under Hire Purchasae are shown under fixed assats and are depreciated al the rale spacilied
under scheduls |l of the Companies Act, 2013,

i) Cost includes purchase price, finance charges in case of major expansion or modemisation and other
attributabie expenses lor bringing the Assets lo their working condition for the intended use, duly cerified by
the engineers of the concemed departments.

(i} FIXED ASSETS:({Intangible)

Intangible fived assets i.e; software is carried at actual cost of acguision including cost incidental theraon — net
of amortisation.

(b) DEPRECIATION:

1. Depreciation is considered on straight line method in tferms of Iife span of different assets specified wnder
schedule || of Companies Act, 2013,

2. Depreciation on additions’deletion during the yeer ia charged on pro rata besis fromfupto the date of such
additionddeletion.

4. Imrespect of revalued depreciable esssata, the differential depreciation on the amounts added on revaluation is
set off against Revaluation Ressrve forming part of Capital Ressrve,

4. Depreciation on increasse in value of assets arising out of wanations in the exchamge rates, B8 charged
proapectively over the remaining life of the asasts,

Leasshold land is amortised over the penod of lease.

6. Intangible ficed assets ie; software ia amortised over a period of 5 years on straight Bne bagis since the date
of bringing the same in uss,

{c) MPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS

Exigency of provisions, if any, for impairmment loss has been assessed In the confext of cash generating units
(CGEU) In due cognizance of indications thereof based on extemalintermal sources of information,

k]



ﬁ NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS ASSOCIATES

Impairmaent o83 is provided against short fall of recoverable value of CGLU'S vis- a- vis writhen down value of
corresponding foosd assels. Recoverable value is the higher of value in use and not seling price of the fixed assels
redevant 1o a CGLU.

{d ) INVENTORIES

(e}

()

(h)

m

Al items of inventories are valued at lower of cost and net reaksable value axcepl for scrap which is considered at
asfimated nat realisable valua.

Cost mcludes all costs of purchasa, conversion and other costs incurrad i bringing tha mvantories (o their prasant
location and condition.

The basis of determining cost for differant calegorias of inventories:
a) Siores, Raw materials and Packing Matsrials - Weighted average basis.

b} Waork in Progress and Finished goods- Matedal cost and appropriate share of production overhead.
¢) Purchased goods - purchase price.

INVESTMENTS

Long term imvestments are stated at cost less provision, if any, against permanant diminution in carmying cost of
imvastment. Current investmeants are camied at lower of cost and Met Assst Valua'market price.

REVEMUE RECOGHNITION

1} Sales and senices are accounted for when the sale of goods or services are completed on accrual  basia.
Sales is net of sales tax / VAT but gross of excise duty.

2} Al items of income and expenses are recognized on accrual basis unless stated otherwise.
3) Export benefits are accounted for on the basis of realization.
RECOGNITION OF PROFIT ON LONG TERM CONTRACTS:

Contracl revenue and Contracl costs ane recognized as revenus and expenses respectivaly by relerance to the
stage of complation of conlracl activity up To the date of balance shosl whan construchon contract stage can be
estimated rollably, Expected bloss on construction contract, based on possibibty of total cost of construction
exceeds contract revenue, |s recognized as an expense, Stage of completion Is arrfived at on the basis of agreed
blling schedule wis - & - vis total contract value,

TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES:

Foraign currancy assels and oulside RabiFties (other than fixed assets and those coverad by forward contracts) as
on tha Balance Sheet dale are converted at the year end exchange rates and loss or gain ansing thareon, is
adjusted in the carrying amount of fiwed assets or charged to Profit & Loss Account, as the case may be,

Transaclions in foreign currencies other than those covered by forward contracts, are recorded al the rale
prevailing on the date of Iransaclion. Impact of exchange Buctuation between the date of the transaction and that
of payment is accounted for separately as exchange gain or loss.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS:
(i} Defined Gontribution Plan =

Provident Fund, Employess Pension and Employees State Insurance are provided on accrual basis. The
accrusd amount being deposited to the respective Trust'Authority.

{if} Dafined Banefit Plan -

Giratuity , Leave salany and Suparannuation beanefit form part of defined benefit plan schemes sxisting in the
company.

The above benefits have been accownted for on the basis of aclurial computation under unit projected cost
mathod in terms of AS — 15 mandated by Ministry of Corporate Affairs [MCA) at year end. Interim liabilities are
provided for in this regard on estimated basis.

{imj Shiort term banafit Plan -
Banefits payabla within a year has baan accountad for on accrual basis in tarms of non discouniad vales,
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GOVERNMEMT GRAMNTS:

Ravanue grants are recognisad in the Profit and Loss Account. Capifal grants are credited to Capital Resarves.
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES:

Research and Development Expenditure is charged to profit and loss account in the year of incurrence,
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

where there is rellably estimable amount of present obligation that warrant to be settled as a resull of past event
with possible cutflow of resources embedying economic beneflt, provision Is recognised in account therefore,

Otherwize no provision i made against contingent labliites which are disclosed In notes 1o acoounis,

(m) MISCELLANEQUS EXPENDITURE:

(m)

(o)

(P}

(a)

FPraliminary expansas are written off in the year in which they are incurmed.

Share issue expenses and payment made fowards Voluntary Relirement Scheme are writlen off over a period of
B0 months in equal installrments,

TAXATION:

Income Tax is provided as per provisions of Income Tax Act, 1861, Deferred tax is recognized only at year and
subject to consideration of prudence on fiming differance baing the difference beteeen the tawabla ncome and
accounting incomea that ariginate in one year and capable of revearsal in one or more subssquant period/periods.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE

Income, Expenses & stake in venture the company has undertaken with a third party have been accounted for in
terma of AS — 27 mandated by MCA.

GEMERAL:

Iems of income, expenses, assels and liabilities nol being specifically referrad fo herein are accounted for
consistently In terms of generally accopled accounting praciices In due adherence of Accounting Standards
mandated under act and in It's absence those Bsued under Intemational Accounting Standards.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION:

Financial Statements of Associales have been consolidaled on equily basis in applicalion of AS 23 mandated
by MCA,
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Figures have been stated In As. In Lacs

1:Revenue from operations:

Rs. In Lacs
Sl No. | Particulars Far the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31"
March 2016 March 2015
I Sale Of Products (Cables, conduciors & wires) 161.11 B619.94
. Sale Of Services (ECD,IRRA & Engineering 410.01 1616.56
services)
([[R Other ﬁ-paral]ng Aevenues (Sale of Scrap) 210 186.69
Total 57322 10,323.18
2:Cash and Cash equivalents: [Refer Schedule 15 to Accounts)
RAs. In Lacs
5l No. | Particulars Far the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31"
March 2016 March 2015
(a) Balances with banks 2593.98 2396.09
(1]} Chegues [ drafts in hand
{e) | Cash in hand 0.61 1.68
Total 2594.59 2397.77

3: Refer Note 7 (a) In schedule 21 to accounts contingent llabilities not provided for:

(a)Claims not acknowledged as debt Rs.5117.19 (Rs. 4817.62)

(b ) Guarantee fumished Rs,3040,37 (Rs. 11,809.89)
(¢} Arrsar dividend on cumulative preference share Rs.1313.60 (As. 1204.45)

4: Refer Mote 7 (b) in schedule 21 1o accounts

Contingent labilities provided for in trms of AS 28

a) Parcylars Qoening
Provision during the vear during the vear
Provision for 10,00 il Mil

doubtiull advance

5: Refer Note 9 In schedule 21 to accounts
Deferred Tax:

a)

Recognition of deferred tax asset upto 31.03.2011 on un absorbed loss & depreciation is afirbuted o
management afirmation of virtual cerainty of fulure profit evidenced by viability of the rehabiltation schame
under progress as per submission to BIFR directives. Howewer no further addition o deferred tax assel,
wihatever may be the contributory of it, has baen recognized as a measura of abundant prudence aftar ralevant

clate,

10,00

Ergvigions withdrawn Closing Provigion Forym whwre the

dizpute iz pending

Kerala High Court
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b)

Deferred tax asset (net) accrued till date vis-a-vis provision retained in accounts,

{(As in Lacs)

As at 31 March

As at 31" March  Provisional retained in terms

20186 2015 of position as on
31032011

A, Deferred Tax Assets
Loss & Unabsorbed depreciation 10,124.45 BE5Z2 48 E250.93
Employes ralated duss 165.35 182.52 185,88
Frovigion for Doulrtfull Dbt 2582 25.82 il
Sub Tolal (A) 10,315.66 BYGE0.80 G450.81
B. Deterred tax liability (Depraciation) ___236.08 __203.08 _1365.68

Met Deferred Tax Asset accrued till date 10079 58 Be&F T2 5ogs 13
C. Net deferred tax actually accounied for 508513 508513 508513
D. Deferred Tax liability'(assel) recognised for the
year [ period il il (574.11)

6: Refer Mote 10 In schedule 21 to accounts

{a) parties in micro and small category under MSMED Act, 2006, have been ieniifiad on the basis of disclosure made

by respactive parties in their invoices 7 challans.

b) Farticulars of due o relevant creditors are given hereunder

Particadirs

As on 31.02.2016

As on 31,03.2015

1 Primcipal
The Principal amaount and the interast
dhu tharietn ramaining unpaid o any
suppliers as at the end of each

accownling year 112.38

Intaresi

86.10

Todal

198.45

Principal

112.35

Iritaras|

88.10

Tolal

198.45

2 | Amount of interest paid by the Buyer in
ferms of See 18 of MSMED Act
2006, along with the payment made 1o
the supplier beyond the appoimted day

dhering each Accounbing yoear,

MA

3 | The amaount of Inferest due and payable
for the peried of delay in making
payrmaen! bad without adding the interest
ureder MSMED Act 2006

20,08

26,08

26.10

26,10

4 | The amount of Interest accrued and
remalning wnpatd at the and of each
Accounting year

116.1B

227.53

112.20

22455

5 [ The amount of further inleres! rmaining
due and payable evan in the succesding
years, unld such dale when the njeresi
dues as above are actually paid to tha
small enterprize, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expen-
diture under section 23 of the MSMED
Act, 2006,

MIL

MIL

MIL

MIL

7. Considering the activities of Engineering division falling short of 10%: benchmark stipulated under AS-17 with more
than 90% of aclivities confined to cable division, submission of segment report has been done away with from this

quarter,
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8: Refer Hote 12 in schedule 21 to accounts

Information on Related parties pursuant to AS 18 izsued by
Related Party disclosures:

a

Related Parties where contral exists:

Mone

B

Other Related parties in transaction

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Kanick Kumar Ghatierjee (From 00, 10,2015)

Managing Direcior

Kr. Prazarta Pandit

Chief Financlal Officar

Mir. Indranil Mitra (Upto 30.11,2015)

Company F-ml:rataw

Mr. Swapan Kumar Mukhedges [Uplo 30.08,2015) Managing Dirgctor
) Others
WS, Associated Industrial Development Co. Pyt. Lid. Private Compary wheara

director is membendirector

Harcules Tral:lng E-ulpﬂrallun Fyt. Lid.

Privata E:H'nparr!.r whara
director 8 memberdirector

The Following ransaclions were carmied out with relaled parties in the ordinary course of business,

Subsidiary , Joini Veniure & Associates and Key Managemant parsonnal

Rs. in Lacs
KNP KNP
ARemuneration Ris.36.20 Rs. 4515
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9 : Rater Note 13 in Schedule 21 to accounts.

Following adusiments relating o smployss banalis hive bean made in Bese sccounts in keeping
with Accountrg Standard 15 (Revised) issusd by fhe Insttule of Chadesd Accountants

a)  Expansss unde’ defned coniiafon plans in lemne of Molewicg bresak up Fos bese recognised duning e et

Draballa giver balaw
Far tha yaar Far tha ysar
wandad on anded on
1208 NEINS
Particulara @ Ra, Lakha Ra, Lakha
Priwidan Fund 19,83 a747
Emjloyess Parasn Schama 4,37 &1
Emjploysss Stabe |nsorancs 0,70 .83
Tolal 35,H 150,10
B Pariculsrs in mspec] of post relirerent bensSl under defined bereiil plans :
Desorption Graluty Learvn Salary Suparannuaton
Reconcilaton of Opaning fair vl of plarnod
assals and valua of dafined banaft (Funded) (Mo Funded) {Fundad)
obigation (Fs. Lakka) [R5, Laihs] {As. Laihs]
& Aeconcliation of opening and cloaing balance of chiligation
o,  Obligaton oz ol 1.4.1% 1.163.34 163.54 8581
k. Past Sonece Cost - - —
6. Curen Service Cost .30 1050 16T
d. Inbesreei Comi TH.15 12680 5.08
W, Achusnial (geinyloss 5. w 1350 11813
. Banafls paid 138879 — —
g Obligaon & al 31 03198 §16.18 103.24 55,54
B. Changa In Plan Assels [Recosclllalicn of spaning & cleding balancas]
A, Fair Vabss of plar assals as @ 1.4.95 258,30 — 36,74
b Espacisd relrn o plan damsis BA.68 —_ 2.0
e, Acuaral gaindkas] (3845 - 284
d.  Contribuions by the emplogar - - -
e Bonedis paid {32875 - -
i Fair Volos of plan assets as ot 31.03.146 535,71 - 6. TH
. Reconcillation of falr valee of plan assets and presont valwe of defined benafit obligations
[: Prasent value ol obligaton @s at 310218 816.18 103.24 55.64
b.  Fair Valos of plan assels as on 31.00.16 538,71 = {3676}
6. Amourk recognizsd in the belance sheat IT6.4T 104,24 52,30
0. Exponses recognized in the period
. Cursm Sardce oosl 3430 B0 167
. Past senice cost —_ —_ —_
6. Inlsres] cost THAS 12.60 5.08
d.  Expacisd return o plan ssests gainfloss) 6,66 — 2.0
B, Aeiurial jgein) o 29,84 [LEE]] {18, 18]
I Expangd mosgrized in P paiod [arbrcdra) .43 VD40 11037
Seaun
i
F. Immeatenent Detaila of Plan Aaasta
B GO Securities —
B Publs Seder urll Bonda —
g, Biwle | Cenlral Guaraciesd Secufilag —
d.  Faimursaman fghl rem Faunncs compasias 8.85
o  Spocial Depost Bchamis, -
L Ot |inclading bark balanoea) 1.16
G Assumpticns
g, Ddscound rode (por anmom| (%) [
k. Esfimated rats of rsturm on plan assais (per anmom] (%) (]
6. Infistion Rals (%) B.04
d.  Famaising Working Like {in Yaar} 1200
a,  Malhod Usad Progacid el Cradil Mathed
I Monally teclor Ag par LALLM [Z006-2008) UiEmala
g Slafl Tumover 10 paar 7 1000 par annum
h.  Supar annuation Aga At 60 Yoars
Basiz of dolermiration of Rotumn on long ferm investment in govemmaent Bond.
respocted dote of Retum
Modn ;

1. Conltribufcn ageins! supsr anmation faed hag Besn mads againsl scoout with LG in comprebansive contex] of 4 comgmries i 8. Moo Corporation Limibad,
Moo Ventures Lid, Micco Parks and Fesorts Lid, and R Engnesring Sendces Lid, Figeres in achusal computstion computaion has been spproprated
Inm‘ﬂH-:llu In respact of paymanl mads b beneicianes from funds meani for offher enfties. by way of adjsticg agairst acuarsl gaindoss and achusl
benaft pa
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.ﬂ MICCO CORPORATION LIMITED ANIDY ITS ASSOCIATES

10: Reder Note 14 in schedule 21 1o accounts

Information pursuant to As 28,
Cable Divislons at Barpada, Shyamnagar and Project Division constitute three cash generating units {CGLY.
Common fixed assets have been apportioned among CGLU's in the ratio of written down value of fixed assets
held by respective units.
Since recoverable value of each CGL under net selling price method prima facie proves higher than carrying
cost of relevant CGUSs" noe provision is called for against impairmeant loss thereon.

11: Refer Mote 15 In schedule 21 {o accounts

Information purawant fo AS 7 (relates to contracts entered into since 01,04 2003) :

(a)
(b)
(e)
(d)
(e)

(f)

Coniract revenue recognized as revenue gross of service tax Rs.2.88 Lac (Rs.1193.300acs)
Retention amaount (forming part of debtors) Rs.268.14Lacs (Rs. As.268.14 Lacs)

Due from customers on account of contract work Rs.3051.80 Lac (Rs. Rs.3586.60Lac),
Aggragate of cost incurred on construction contract As. 11.13 Lac (As.1142.43 Lac).

Aggregate of profit (Loss) recognized against construction confract (Rs.8.25 Lac) (Rs.50.66 Lac) on the
basis of direct cost only.

The amount of advances received Rs.Nil lacs (nil)

12: Refer Note 4 in schedule 1 to accounts and notes referred in schedule 21 to accounts

(a) Preference Share Capital relates to 21,83,000 number of

5% cumulative praference shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid up, 1846000
number of which is convertible at the oplion of share holders.

(k) Period of redemption of Preference Shares:

Fimancial Convertible af the Others (Mao.) Todal
Years option of member

(Mos.) {Mos.)
2008 -10 = 110000 110,000
2010 - 11 = 110000 110,000
2011 -12 E15300 1170040 732,300
2012 -13 B15300 - 615,300
_2013 - 14 615400 - 615,400
1,846,000 337,000 2,183,000

( ¢} Conversion right has not been excersied by concemned shareholders il date.

2



NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS ASSCOLCIATES ﬁ

13: Refer Note 16 In schedule 21 to accounts

(a) Eaming Per Share{after consideration of exira ordinary items)

YEAR YEAR
MNCL ENDED ENDED
318T MARCH 16 ST MARCH 15
| Earning Per Share (Basic )
Loss after Tax (4948.62) (4510.12)
Less:
Praference Dividend 5% (Rs. Lacs) 109.15 10215
A. Amount used as numarators In calculating
basic & diluted earning per shara. {5067.77) {4619.2T)
Weighted average no. of Equity Share - Basic 136,877 482 131,877,482
Weighted average no. of Equity Share - Diluted 136,877 482 131,877 482
E. Earning Per Share [Basic) (3.70) {3.50)
F. Earning Per Share (Diluted) (3.70) (3.50)
(b) Eaming Per Share (without consideration of extra ordinary items)
YEAR YEAR
NCL ENDED ENDED

Earning Per Share (Basic )

315T MARCH 18

315T MARCH 15

Loss after Tax
Less:
Preferance Dividend 5% (Rs. Lacs)
Extra Ordinary Kems
Impact of changes in accounling
estimation
A. Amount used as numarators in calculating
basic & diluted sarning per share.

Weighted average no. of Equity Share - Basic
Waeighted average no. of Equity Share - Diluted

E. Earming Per Share (Basic)
F. Earning Per Share [Diluted)

(4948.62) (4510.12)
108.15 109.15
851.00
178,00
(S057.77) {5392.27)
136,877 482 131,877,482
136,877,482 131,877,482
(3.70) (4.09)
(3.70) (4.09)

Pending approval from appropriate authority of the paid up value of shares poised for allotment to Micco Restructuring
Employess Trusl Fund, Rs.74 lac (previous vear Bs.174 lac) received from the Trust on account of share application

has not been reckoned by determination of EPS — basic as well as diluted,

T3




ﬁ NICOO CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS ASSOCIATES

14: Refer Note 17 in schedule 21 to accounts

“Asset Sale Committes” constituted by The Board for Industrnal & Financlal Reconstruction (BIFR) in terms of order of
AAIFR,sold Project Division and the sale proceed including interest accrued thereon amounting to Rs.1053.76 lacs
has besn kept in interest bearing “No Lien" account maintained with Allahabad Bank as per BIFR directive dated
09,10.2013, Sale of Baripada Division is yet to materialise.

Relevant Mo Lien Account described herein as escrow account amounts to Rs.2599.88 lacs which includes, apart
from proceads of Sale of Projact Division and intarast accrued thereon , proceads of sale of investmenis in Micco Bio

Tech Limited and sale of cars In terms of permission from authorities being kept intact pending direction to the effect
of usage of said fund from the authorities.

15: Refer Note 18 in schedule 21 to accounts

Due to suspension of work in units, depreciation on components of fixed assets could nol be separalely ascerained
based on technical evaluation as requirsd under fooinote '4' of schadule |l of Companies Act, 2013,

16: Refer Foot Mote 1 & 2 in schedule 10 to accounts

C.Y. P,
1 (&) Aggregate amount of Quoted Investment (net of provision) Rs. 145.19 145,19
(b) Aggregate market value of Quoted Investmeant : As.  3501.88 1,834.98
() Aggregate amount of Unguoted Investment : RAs. 134.59 13459
2 Net of provisions in carrying amount of nen current Investmant As. TET .56 TBT .56
17 : Information on Associates pursuant to AS 23 issued by ICAI
Nicco VENTURES LIMITED
201516 201415
RaiLac RafLac
Extent of Siake in Associyles FEALY FE A2
% of Voling Power . 22 A42% 22 A2%
Apquisition Cost of Invastmants wndar squity method 91.90 91.90
[Including goodwill of Ra_ 7.04L)
Agld, Shares of post acpuesition prafl up Lo 31032015 iT.88 18,67
109,86 110.57
Less, Share of loss for the year ended on 31/032016 -7.31 -0.79
Value of investment as on 31.03.2018 102 55 109,88
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NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED ANDY ITS ASSOCIATES ﬁ

Nicco PARKS & RESORTS LIMITED

Rsllac Rsflac

Extenl of Slaks in Associates 25.00% 25.00%

% of Voling Power : 25.00% 25.00%

Acquisition Cost of Investmants under equity mathod 120.50 120.50
|[Excluding Capital Resarve of Bs. 0.68 Lacs]

Add, Shares of post acquisition profil up to 31032016 45770 3E4.99

BTE.20 50549

Less, Share of profit for the year ended on 31032016 TEAG 1271

Valee of investment as on 31.03.2016 £56.30 Srago

Nicco FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Fsilac Rsflac

Extent of Slake in Associates 48,20% 48,20%

%o of Voling Power 4E.20% 48.20°%

Acquisition Cost of Invastmants under aquity mathod 25.94 25.94

Less, Share of post acquisition lose up to 31022015 [11.431 [Fe2

14.51 1842

Add, Shares of profit for the year endad on 31032016 - (3911

“alue of Investment as an 31.03.2016 14.51 14.51

Micco ENGINEERING SERVICES LIMITED

Rsflac Rseflac
Extent of Stake in Associatas 23.56% 2£3.56%
% of Voting Fower : 23.56% 2£3.56%
Acqulsition Cost of Investmants under equity meathad 14,67 14,67
Add, Shares of post acquisition profit up to 31032015 BEE 55 50114
BE3.22 615,81
Add, Share of profit for tha yvear ended on 310302016 E7.93 £7.41
751,15 L1
Profit to be consldered In Consolidated Profit & Loss Ale 136.72 135.50
Az Par aur attached reporl of even date
FOR G.BASU & CO. On bahalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accounlants
HAROTTAM DAS Director & Chaiman-Audit Committes
UDAYAN RAY Vice Chairman
KARTICK KUMAR CHATTERJEE Managing Diraclor
RAJIVE KALUL Chaimman
SIBAJI DATTA Chilef Financlal Officer
RAHUL BANER.JEE Co. Secratary

Kaolkata, The 18th day of May, 2016
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NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: L55101 WB1983PLCO36362

Regd. Office: Nicco House, 1B & 2 Hare Street, Kolkata — 700 001, India.
Tel.: +9L{033) 6628 5000 Fax: +21(033) 2230 9443, Website: www piccogroup.com Email:
MVestoTsseTvicEs([@nicCogroup, com

BALLOT FORM

1. MNameis) of Member(z):
(including joint-holders, if any)

2. Registered Folio No. /
DPID Mo. / Client ID Mo, *
{(*Applicable to Members holding shares in dematerialised form)

3. No of Shares held:

I'We hereby exercise my our vole in respect of the Ordinary Resolution{zl/Special Resolution(s) az specified
in the Notice of the Company dated August 11, 2016 to be passed through Ballot for the business stated in the said

Motice by conveyving my/our assent or dissent to the said resolution in the relevant box below:

[/We dissent

{'We nszent

Htem _ Typeof |1 to the

Na. Description resolation h“‘{;‘:;'"' o resolution
{Against)

i {21 Adoption af the Aodited Sandalene Financlal Siatements of the
Company for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2016, together
with the Auditars® Eeport and Directors” Report thereon. )
(b} Adoption of the Consolidsted Financial Statements of the Company | Ordinary
for the financial year ended onm 31% March, 2016, topether with the
Auditors” Repont therson.

3. Appointment of Director in place of Mr Udayan Ray, who refires by )
rodation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, Ordinary

3. Appointment of Director in place of Mr Shiv Siddhant Narnyan Kaul,
wiho retires by rotabion and being eligible, offers himself for re- Cerdiimary
appointment

4, Ratification for sppoinfment of Mfs G Basu & Company, .
Chartered Accouniznts, a5 Stafutory Anditors and fixation of Urmibinary

remuneratien theresf

# Appointment of Dr Dilip Kemar Datta, as an  Independent

IHrector for five conseculive years uplo calendar year 2021, Special
6, | Medification of Ordinary Reselution pessed in AGM beld op 25 .
September, 2015 Chrdimary
7. Payment of renmumeration 1o the Cost Anditors for the year ending on )
31" March, 2017. Ordinary
Place:
Date:

Signature of Member / Beneficial Owner
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PROXY FORM Form No. MGT-11

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rale 19(3) of the Companies (Maragement and Administrafion) Rules, 2014]
NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: L35101WB1983IPLCO36362
Regd Office: Nicco House, 1B & 2 Hare Street, Kolkata — 700 001. India.

Tel - +91({033) 6628 5000 Fax: +21(033) 2230 9443,
Website: wwwmiccogroup.com Emal: mvestorsservices(@nccogroup.com

T T Ty

as my/our proxy to attend and vote {on a poll) for mens and on my/our behalf at the 3 3rd Annmal General Meeting of
the Company, to be beld on Tuesday, 2Tth September, 2016 at 11.00 A M. at "Auditorium”, on 10th Floor, of The
Indian Chamber of Commerce, ICC Towers, 4 India Exchange Place, Eolkata 700 001 and at any adjourmment thereof
mrespect of such resolufions as are mdicated below:

ORDIMARY BUSINESS FOR AGATMST

:‘l%[ﬂ

() Adeption of the Andited Standalone Financial Satements of the Company for the
financial vear ended oo 315t March, 2016, together with the Anditors' Report and)
Drirectars’ Fepont therson.
(b) Adoption of the Consolidfated Financial Satements of the Company for the|
financial year endad on 3 15t March, 2016, together with the Anditors" Repont thereon.

2 Appointment of Director in place of Mr Udayan Fay, who retires by rotation
and heingz elipible, offers himeslf for re-appointment.

3. Appomiment of Directar in place of Mr Shiv Siddhant Marayan Eaul, who

4 Ratification for appoimiment of M5 & Basn & Company, Chartersd
Accountants, as Stahstory Auditors and fixation of rermumemation thereof




SPECIAL BUSINESS

5 Appoiniment of Dr Dilip Eumar Datta, a5 an Independent Direcior for five
Comsertive years upin calendar year 2021 .

& Modification of Ordinary Eesolution passed m AGM held on

1%th September, 2015
T Payment of reommeration to the Cost Anditors for the year ending on
31stMarch, 2017,
Sipmed this day of 2014. Affiw
TEVEInE
Stamp of
Es 1~
Sipnature of shareholdst
Sigmature of Promy holden(s)

Mote:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Compamy,
nivtless than 48 hours before the commencement of the Mesting.

2. A persom can act as proxy on behalf of Members upto and not exceeding fifty and holding in apgregate not more than ten
percent of the tofal share capital ofthe Company. Further, 3 Member holding more than ten percent, of the total share capital of
the Company carmying voting rights may appoint a single person as procey and such person shall not act &s proey for any other
persom or Membser,

3. It is optional to put 8 X' in the appropriste column against the Fesolotions indicated in the Box. If you leave the For' or
"Against’ column blank against any or all Beschifions, your proxy will be entitled to vote n the manner as he'she thinks
Sppropriste.




NICCO CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: L35101WE1933PLCD36362
'WICCO HOUSE,
2 HARE STREET, KOLKATA = 70000
Ph.: 033 662B5000, 66285250 - 55, Fay: 033 22309443
E-rnall: Investarssendcesi@nlocogroup.com  Website: wwewnlcoogroup.com

ATTENDAMNCE SLIP
iPlease fill the attendance slip & hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

Mame of the sole / first named :
shareholder incld. joint holders, i any

Mame of prooy holder :

Address of sole [ first named :
sharehalder

Reglstered follomo. :
DP D/ Client 1D

Mumber of shares held :

| herelry record my presence at the 33" Annual General Meeting of Nicoo Corporation Lirnited being held on Tuesday,
the 27 day of September, 2016 at 11.00 a.m. at Auditorium on 10th Floor. of Indian Chamber of Commerce,
1CC Towwvars, 4 India Exchange Place, Kolkata 700001,

Signature of Member/Proxy

_____________________________________________________________________________________ :’.ﬁ S

DearShareholder,

SUBIECT: PROCESS AND MANNER FOR AVAILING E-VOTING FACILITY
Pursuant to the prowvisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Comparmy is pleased to offer e-voting facility to the members to cast thelr wotes
electronically &t an alternative to participation at the Annual General Meeating to be held on Tuesday, the 277 day af
September, 20006 at 11.00 a.m. The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited
["MSDL") to provide e-voting facilities. The e-voting facilityis available at the link hitps;/fwww. evoting. nsdl.com

The alectronic voting particulars are set out balow:

EVEM User 1D Password
(E-woting event number)

The e-woting facility will be avallable during the following voting period:

Commencement of e-votlng End of e-woting

24" Saptember, 2016 from 9:00 AN 26" September, 2016 upto 5200 FM
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I /T rpedvered ploase rofrTy Bo .

NICCO CORPORATION LT,
NICCO HOUSE

2, HARE STREET
KOLKATA-700 001

INDIA

FHONE : 862B-5000



